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lndependent auditors' report
To the County Board
Calumet County, Wisconsin

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business{ype activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Calumet County, Wisconsin (the "County") as of and
for the year ended December 31,2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the County's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

oPrNtoNs
ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the County as of December 31 ,2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the Human Services,
and County Roads and Bridges special revenue funds for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

o

A member of

Nexia
lnternational

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE
As discussed in Note 3H. to the financial statements, in 2018 the County adopted new accounting guidance, GASB
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions for its Local
Retiree Life lnsurance Fund benefits. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.
OTHER MATTERS

Required Supplementary lnformation
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and
analysis on pages 4 through 17 and the schedules relating to pensions and other postemployment benefits on pages
62 through 63 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other lnformation
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
County's basic financial statements. The supplementary information as listed in the Table of Contents and schedule of
expenditures of federal and state awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requiremenfg Cosf Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the State Single Audit
Guidelines, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The supplementary information and the schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the supplementary information and the schedules of
expenditures of federal and state awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
Prior Year Summarized Financial lnformation
The 2017 financial statements were audited by Schenck SC, whose practice became part of CliftonlarsonAllen LLP as
of January 1,2019, and whose report dated August 2,2018, expressed unmodified opinions on those respective
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information from which the prior year summarized financial information was derived.
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OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOYERNMENT AUDIT''VG SIA'VDARDS
ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 24,2019, on our
consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards in
considering the County's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Ct¡a,Ø^'-*All*

LL-P

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Green Bay, Wisconsin
July

24,2019
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31,2018

As management, we offer readers of the County's basic financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the County for the year ended December 31,2018. I encourage readers to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information provided in the notes to the
basic financial statements, which can be found on pages 33-64 of this report.

Financial Hiehliehts

o

The assets and deferred inflows of the County exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at
the close of the most recent year by 85I,192,493 (net position). Of this amount, $9,150,057 (unrestrícted
net positíon) may be used to meet the County's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
The County's total net position decreased by $606,598. Several factors contributed to the overall decrease
as

o
o
o
a

a

a

follows:
Fringe benefit costs of pension and other post-employment benefits increased by $3,602,965 which
included the recognition of retiree life insurance liability of $823,671 which was previously not
reported.
Highway operations resulted in a net loss of $506,926.
Depreciation expense exceeded capital asset additions by 52,668,442.

Governmental fund balances increased $3.9 million which included $1.8 million in capital construction
including road and public safety projects, the majority of which were financed by the implementation of a
0.5olo county sales tax initiated April of 2018. The county also issued debt in December of 2018 for the
reimbursement of $2.9 capital construction costs incurred in20l7. Additionally approximately $2.4 million
was used in the retirement of outstanding debt. As of the close of the current year, the County's
goveÍrmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $18,940,194, an increase of $3,873,266 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 49o/o of this total amount,99,354,147 is avqilable for
spending at the County's discretion (unassignedfund balance).
At the end of the current year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was 59,354,747, or
approximately 55o/o of total general fund expenditures.
The County has established a minimum fund balance policy; the minimum unassigned fund balance to be
retained for 20 1 8 is $5 ,7 6l ,21 6. The County has also established a working capital requirement of
$1,900,000.
The County's total general-obligation debt increased by $555,000 (3.6%) during the current year. The key
factor is the scheduled debt repayment of $2.4 million of the County's outstanding debt and the issuance of
new debt in the amount of $2.9 million.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31,2018

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic financial statements.
The County's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide fTnancial statements.The government-wide financíal stqtements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the County's finances, in a manner similar to a private sector business.
The statement of net position presents information on all of the County's assets, liabilities, and deferred
outflows and inflows of resources with the difference reported as net posítion. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is
improving or deteriorating.
The statement of actívilies presents information showing how the County's net position changed during the
most recentyear. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cashflows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused
vacation leave.)

Both of the govemment-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmentql activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the County include general govemment, public safety, sanitation,
health and social services, public works, education and recreation, conservation and development and interest
on long-term debt. The business-type activities of the County include a highway construction and maintenance
operation.
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 18-20 of this report.

Fund fTnancial statements. Afund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and
proprietary funds.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31,2018

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, goveÍimental fund financial statements focus on neqr-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources) as well as on balances ofspendable resources available at the end ofthe year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating the County's near-term financing requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activítíes in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better

understand the long-term impact of the County's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the govemmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmentalfunds and governmental activities.
The County maintains twelve individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the goveffìmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the general fund, the human services special revenue fund, the county roads and
bridges special revenue fund, the county sales tax capital project fund, the capital projects fund and the debt
service fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for all of its governmental funds. As part of the basic
governmental fund financial statements, budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the general
fund and for each individual major special revenue fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 21-29 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The County maintains

a single type of proprietary

fund. Enterprisefunds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activitíes in the government-wide financial statements.
The County uses an enterprise fund to account for its highway construction and maintenance operation.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the govenìment-wide financial statements, only in
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the highway construction and
maintenance operation, which is considered to be a major fund of the County.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30-32 of this report.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31,2018

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the goveflìment-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
basic financial statements can be found on pages 33-64 of this report.

Other information. Required supplementary information for the County's other postemployment and pension
benefit plans as well as the combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental
funds are presented immediately following the notes to the basic financial statements. Required supplementary
information and combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 65-80 of this
report.
Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the County's financial position. In the
case of the County, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $51,192,493 at the close of the most recent year.

By far the largest portion of the County's net position (71%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, etc.), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that
are still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although, the County's investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
The remaining balance of unrestricted net position amounting to $11,662,685 may be used to meet the County's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current year, the County is able to report positive balances in all categories of net position, for
the County as a whole. The County's business-type activities reflect positive balances in the categories of net
position and negative balances in unrestricted net position. The County's total net position decreased by
9374,778 during the current year.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 310 2018

Calumet Gounty's Net Position
Governmental
Activities
Current and other assets

Capitalassets
Totalassets
Deferred outflows of resources
Long-term liabilities outstanding
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

Business-Type
Activities

$ 46,586,022 $

Total

Total
2017

2018

(1,248,684) $ 45,337,338

$

38,279,546
55,992,344
94,271,890
448,631 5,703,468 6,266,265
22,324,409
476,500
22,404,686
533,094
3,564,717
3,756,585

10,426,026 53,311,900
89,471,896 9,177,342 98,649,238

42,885,874

5,254,837
21,928,186
3,031,623

26,126,863
5,255,314
11
685

10,426,026
234,233
512

8

36,552,889
5,489,547
150

o57

39,1s8,941

2,287,837
1
493
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the County's net position by $180,124. Key
elements of this increase are as follows:
Galumet County's Ghange in Net Position
Governmental
Activities
Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for service
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

$

Business-Type
Activities

6,964,098 $

:

4,976,749

10,662,400
58,063

I revenues:

Property taxes
Other taxes
Grants and contributions not

restricted to specific programs
Other
Transfers

Totalrevenues

Total
2018

$

Total
2017

11,940,847 $

11,103226

,'.33:äBl

10,659,621

27,206

20,282,826
2,899,610

20,282,826
2,899,610

18,478,207
304,931

1,031,932

1,031,932
353,783

1,025,882
155,221

353,783

252 712

976 749

47

41 7

Expenses:

General government
Public safety
Sanitation
Health and social services
Public works
Education and recreation
Conservation and development

lnterest on long{ei'm debt
Highway operations
otal expenses
lncrease (decrease) in net position
Change in accounting prinicple
Net position - beginning
Net position - ending
a
o

6,311,446
7,626,338

6,311,446
7,626,338
33,205
16,609,312

33,205
16,609,312

4,610,507
4,009,359

4,610,507
4,009,359

1,920,550
393,249

1,920,550
393,249
5

16,248,345
4,521,256
4,030,270

46 997 641

1,838,201
366,817
159
7
119

(606,598)

(60,517)

675
41 513

6,434,453
6,86ô,160

5

738,746
(47 ,976)

(558,622)
738

702

3

51 567 271

862

147

1

5

55

3

Property taxes increased by $1,804,619 (9.7%) during the year. Most of the increase was directed
toward General Fund Operations $1,515,941 and Health & Human Services $312,118.
Other taxes increased by 52,594,679 (850%) mainly as the result of the April l't implementation of the
0.5% County Sale Tax. This tax was implemented with the intention of eliminating debt issued for the
capital project expenditures.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31,2018

o

a

Charges for Service for governmental activities increased by 5512,695 from the previous period;
primarily as a result of an increase in client utilization of the County's Health & Human Services
programs in the amount of $428,95 4; an increase of $244,932 from General Government programs and a
decrease from Public Safety programs in the amount of $293,589 as a result of the County exiting the

FOXCOMM dispatching consortium.
Operating expense for governmental activities increased by $1,260,430 primarily as a result of Public Safety
implementing the replacement of their radio system amounting to $768,931and increases in client activities in
the Health & Human Services programs in the amount of $388,082.

Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities
2.4%

0.8%
0.0%

I

Charges for services

I

Operating grants and contributions

r

Capital grants and contributions

I Property taxes

0.t%

r

Other taxes

r

Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific programs

r

Unrestricted investment earnings

r ôthor

t0
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 310 2018

Expenses & Program Revenue - Governmental Activities
(in thousands of dollars)
18,000

16,000

IRevenues

I

14,000

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

0

General

Government

Public

Safety

Sanitation

Health &

Social

Public Works

Services

Education &
Recreation

Conservation & lnterest on Debt
Development

Business-type activities. Business-type activities decreased the County's net position by $555,000. The
following items played a role in the increased growth of business-type activities:
a

a

Charges for services for business-type activities increased by 5324,926

(7%). Highway construction and

maintenance operations accounted for this increase. There was a slight increase in road construction
projects budgeted when compared to the previous year. However during 2018 the State request additional
road work to be performed beyond the original budgeted amount, which accounted for the majority of the
increase.
Expenditures for business-type activities increased by $333,156 (6.4%). Highway construction and
maintenance operations on the State road system accounted for the majority of this increase.
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Managementos Discussion and Analysis
December 311 2018

Expenses and Program Revenues - Businesstype Activities

$6,000,000

I

$5,000,000
$4,000,000

trProgram Revenues

$3,000,000

lExpenses

$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$Highway Operations

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities

I

12

Charges for services

CaluÍîïêt
Count
t

206 Court Street
Chilton, Wl 53014
Office: (e20) 849-L446
Toll Free: (833) 620-2730
Fax: (e2o) 849-1475

Management's Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Analysis of the Government Funds
As noted earlier, Calumet County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financerelated legal issues.

Goverimental funds. The focus of the County's govemmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County's
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the County's
net resources available for spending at the end of the year.
As of the end of the current year, the County's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$ 1 8,940,19 4 an increase of $3,873,266 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 49Yo oî this amount
($9,354,747) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the County's discretion, as
previously discussed. The remainder of the fund balance is restricted, committed or non-spendable to indicate
that it is not available for new spending because it has already been obligated 1) for current year purchases of
inventory and prepayments that benefit periods beyond the end of the current year ($298,750),2) for nonJiquid
delinquent taxes ($553 ,290),3) for advances to other funds that are not expected to be liquidated in the next
year ($2,099,558), 4) for incomplete projects that are requested to be carrying into the next budget cycle
($1,645,549), and 5) for funds which are restricted or committed for a variety of other pulposes ($4,988,300).
The general fund is the main operating fund of the County. At the end of the current year, unassigned fund
balance of the general fund was 99,354,747, while total fund balance reached 914,251,894. As a measure of the
general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to
total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 55 percent of the total general fund expenditures,
while total fund balance represents 84 percent of that same amount.
The fund balance of the County's general fund decreased by 5417,570 during the current year.
Key factors of this decrease are as follows:

o
o
o
o
o
o

Revenues from all categories excluding taxes increased 5466,749 compared to last year.
Intergovernmental revenues decreased by $35,919 over the prior year mainly as a result of a decrease
($87,028) in grant funded cost sharing projects in the land & water conservation department and an increase

($56,656) in snowmobile trail projects in the county parks department.
Interest earnings on idle funds increased by $208,549 over the prior year as a result of increasing interest
rates and the county reimbursing itself for capital expenditures incurred tn2017.
Miscellaneous revenues increased by 5237,954 over the previous year mainly as a resült of the City of
Chilton's distribution of excess tax incremental district proceeds to the overlaying districts.
Expenditures net of the increases in property tax revenue decreased by 5227,177 over the prior year. While
increases in Public Safety ($1,379,008) which included $835,821 in radio technology upgrades, 5362,518
when compared to the prior fiscal year accounted for the majority of the increase in expenditures.
Net transfers to the general fund were 5216,225 resulting in the decrease in fund balance noted above.
13
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December 31,2018

The human services fund excess of revenues over expenditures amounted to $411,030. This balance was then
transferred to the general fund unassigned fund balance. Key factors influencing the excess revenues over
expenditures are as follows:

o
o
o

Intergovernmental revenue decreased by $101,472 and charges for services increased by $20,341 during the
current year.
Property tax revenue by $312,1 l8 over the prior year.
Human services fund expenditures, increased by $253,083 or less than2o/o, which was completely ofßet by
intergovemmental revenues, charges for services and taxes used in support of these programs. Various
program expenditures for the Human services fund continue to be at historic lows leading to less than
anticipated spending which generated an excess ofrevenues over expenditures.

The county roads and bridges fund had an excess of revenues over expenditures amountingto 552,281 mainly
as a result ofa decrease in property tax revenue of$39,179 and county road and bridges expenditures of
533,707; and an increase intergovernmental revenues of $32,031.
The county sales tax fund was created as a result of the county implementing a 0.5o/o sale tax effective on April
1't, 2018. The fund is used to account for the proceeds of the sales tax revenue collections and the expenditure
of capital projects, mainly road projects that would have been previously financed by general obligation debt.
Revenue collected for the year amounted to $2,61 5,609 of which 9I,446,533 were spent of various capital
projects. The remaining excess of revenue over expenditures was applied in the 2019 county sales tax capital
budget.
The capital projects fund has azero fund balance at the end of 2018 as a result of the county issuing debt to
reimburse itself for capital expenditures that occurred in2017 and2018. The reimbursement zeros out this
fund, similar projects previously funded by the issuance of debt will be expensed in the county sales tax fund.

Proprietary funds. The County's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
County's govemment-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The unrestricted net position of the
highway construction and maintenance operations amounted to a negative 82,512,628. The change in total net
position was a 5554,902 decrease. For the most part the decrease in total net position is as a result of the
9506,926loss from operations in the current fiscal year and the cumulative effect of change in account principle
as a result of accounting for the retiree life insurance OPEB liability provided by the Wisconsin Retirement
System.
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General Fund Budsetarv Hishlishts
Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget amounted to an $853,977 increase in
appropriations and 5208,174 increase in estimated revenues, both of which can be briefly summarized as

follows:
o

a

a

$160,800 in increases to progtams within general government activities mainly as a result of project budgets
that weren't completedin2}lT and carried forward into the 2018 budget.
5177,704 in increase to cost sharing grant programs within conservation and development as a result of
project not completing in 2011.
5162,606 in increases to programs within education and recreation as a result of carrying forward projects
for the completion of a new parks administration building and the completion of development of the
Friendship trail system.
9221,794 in increases to transfers to capital projects fund to provide additional financing for the sheriff s
department computer aided dispatch and records management system.
$149,601 in intergovernmental revenue increases to programs within conservation & development related to
the cost sharing projects carried forward from the prior year and $58,573 in additional grants for county
park trail systems.

Of the $645,803 net increase, the County intended it to be funded by additional intergovemmental grants and
aids and unassigned fund balance. During the year, overall revenue budgetary estimates and expenditure
budgetary estimates were better than expected, thus reducing the need to draw upon additional fund balance for
any budgetary shortfalls.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital assets. The County's investment in capital

assets for its governmental and business-type activities as
(net
of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
of December 31, 2018 amounts to $53,311,900
assets includes land, land improvements, buildings, machinery and equipment, public domain infrastructure
(highways and bridges) and work in progress. The total decrease in the County's net investment in capital
assets for the current year was approximately 7 percent (a 8.3 percent decrease for governmental activities and
0olo percent change for business-type activities.)

Major capital asset events during the year included the following:

o
o

A variety of County Trunk Highway construction projects (public domain infrastructure) were completed
during the year at a cost of $1,390,764.
The Parks department office building was completed in 2018 at a cost of 5614,421.
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A variety of machinery & equipment purchases were completed during the year at a cost of $1,592,583
including the installation of various hardware/software systems $296,109 and the replacement of Public
S afety equipment and dispatching softwar e $1,245,640.
Work in Progress decreased as a result of the county parks office and sheriff s department computer aided
dispatch and records management software systems being completed.
Calumet County's Capital Assets
(net of accumlated depreciation)
Business-type activities
Governmental activities
2017

18

Land

3,536,318 $

3,536,318 $

1,678,168

1,870,331

7,378,213
4,220,554
25,027,775

7,050,166
5,080,600
26,523,729
1
172

$

Land lmpr.
Buildings
Machinery & Equip.

lnfrastructure
Work in Progress
Total

I

2018

26,1 91

ïotal
2018

2017

$

26,191

$

2,816,712

$

1,678,168
14,961,336
7,037,266
25,027,775

7,736,182
2,675,ô55

7,583, 1 23

3,562,509

1

044

2017
3,562,509
1,870,331
14,786,348

7,756,255
26,523,729

846

1

172

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in note 3.D pages 44-45 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current year, the County had total general obligation debt outstanding of
$15,940,000. The full faith and credit of the County back all of this debt.
Calumet County's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Debt
Business-type activities
Governmental activities
2017
2018
2017

Total

I

G.0. Debt:
Notes

$

15,940.000

$

15,385,000 $

$

201

$

I

15,940,000

2017

$

15,385,000

The County's total general obligation debt increased by $555,000 (3.6%) during the current year. The key
factor in this increase was the scheduled repa¡rment of debt in 2018 in the amount of $2,390,000 and the
issuance of new debt in the amount of $2,945,000.
The County maintains a"Aa2" rating from Moody's Investor Services and a "AA+" rating from Standard and
Poor's for long-term general obligation debt.
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limit the amount of general obligation debt the County may issue to 5 percent of its total equalized
valuation. The current debt limitation for the County is $210,753,825; which is significantly greater than the
County's $15,940,000 in outstanding general obligation debt.
State statutes

Additional information on the County's long-term debt can be found in Note 3.F on pages 46-47 of this report.
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates
a

o

The unemployment rate for Calumet County is currently 2.6 percent which is a decrease from arate of 3.0
percent ayear ago. This compares to the state's average unemployment of 3.3 percent and the nation's
unemployment rate of 3.8 percent. Calumet County is currently ranked as one of the 2nd lowest
unemplo¡iment rate of the state's 72 counties.
The population of Calumet County grew at an estimated rate o17.53%o since the 2010 census, continuing a
pattern of rapid growth, which has placed the county as the 2nd fastest growing county in the state. This
growth outpaces the population growth of the state at 2.27%.
The 2017 Per Capita Personal Income of Calumet County was 547 ,920 ranked sixteenth highest in the State
and an increase of 2.5o/o over the previous year. The state wide Per Capita Personal Income for the same
time period was $48,941.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the County's budget for the 2019 fiscal

year

Wisconsin enacted legislation in2009 to impose a limit on the amount of the annual tax levy increase. This
limit imposed on Wisconsin counties uses the baseline of 2010levy adopted for the 2011 budget. The
legislation limits the increase in the amount of the levy to the greater of 0.0% or growth in net new construction
within the county for the 2019 budget. Net new construction is defined as "changes to equalized value due to
construction of buildings and improvements to land minus changes to equalized value due to the demolishing or
destruction of buildings and the removal of land improvements." Calumet County increased the2018 tax levy
for the 2019 budget by the maximum allowed under this legislation.
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances for all those with an
interest in the County's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or request
for additional financial information should be addressed to Finance Director, Calumet County Finance
Department,206 Court Street, Chilton, V/I 53014-1198.
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CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position
December 31,2018

(With summarized financial information as of December 31,2017)

Governmental

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
lnternal balances
lnventories
Prepaid items
Other assets
Net pension asset
Committed assets:
Cash and investments
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment

$

Total

Business-type

Activities

Activity

2018

2017

17,723,068 $
50 $ 17 ,723,118 $ 13,741,416
23,736,940 206,729 23,943,669 23,778,401
2,099,558 (2,099,558)
19,988 198,121 218,109 262,923
224,247
11 ,741
235,988 241,906
54,900
54,900
54,900
2,727,321 234,233 2,961,554

200,000

200,000

200,000

3,536,318 26,191 3,562,509 3,562,509
1,678,1 68
,678,1 68
,870,331
7,378,213 7,583,123 14,961,336 14,786,348
4,220,554 2,816,712 7,037,266 7,756,255
25,027,775
25,027,775 26,523,729
1,044,846
1,044,846 1,493,172
89,471,896 9,177,342 98,649,238 94,271,890
1

lnfrastructure
Construction in progress
Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows related to pension
Deferred outflows related to OPEB
Total deferred outflows of resources

1

4,983,545

422,308
26,323

5,405,853

448,631 5,703,468

6,179,039
87,226
6,266,265

2,667j50

451,261
81,833

3,118,411
34,338
411,969

3,199,333

34,338
330,136

3,600,893
15,125,644

24,618
73,854

3,625,511
15,199,498

3,225,821
15,957,088
803,145
2,474,279
26,080,994

271,292
5,254,837

297,615

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Net pension liability
Other postemployment health benefits liability
Total liabilities

24,320
397,008

3,201,648
378,028 3,579,676
24,959,809 1,009,594 25,969,403

Deferred inflows of resources
Property taxes levied for subsequent year
Deferred inflows related to pension
Deferred inflows related to OPEB

21,270,692

Total deferred inflows of resources

26,722,062

5,422,242

21,270,692
5,887,925
32,193

465,683
3,065

29j28

468,748 27J90¡10

20,294,899
2,570,576
24,415
22,889,890

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

26J26,863

10,426,026

5,255,314
11,662,685

$

43.044.862

$

8.147.631

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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36,552,889
5,489,547
9,150,057

234,233
(2,512,628)

$

51.192.493

$

39,158,941
2,287,837
10,120,493
51.567.271

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31,2018
(With summ arized financial information for the year ended December 31,2017)

Program Revenues

Expenses

Charges for
Services

Operating
Grants and
Contributions

Capital
Grants and
Contributions

Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental activities :
General government
Public safety
Sanitation
Health and social services
Public works
Education and recreation
Conservation and development
lnterest on long{erm debt
Total governmental activities
Business-type activity:
Highway operations

Total primary government

$

6,311,446

$

7,626,338
33,205
16,609,312
4,610,507
4,009,359
1,920,550

1,196,884
768,033
11,659

124,351

$

4,316,943

7,519,758

969
367,053

1,417,552

244,948

531,007

,513,966

57,609
6,964,098

10.662.400

5,483,675

4,976,749

393,249
41

$ 46.997.64r $ 11.940.847

General revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
U nrestricted investments earnings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Total general revenues
Change in net position
Net position - beginning, as previously reported
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

19

$

88,369

576

981,363

s 10

662400

57,487

58,063

s

s8 063

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Chanqes in Net Position
Governmental
Activities

$

Total

Business-type

2018

Activitv

$

(4,990,211) $
(6,769,360)

(21,546)
(4,772,611)
(3,628,175)
(2,167,267)

2017

$

(5,351,824)
(5,666,970)

(4,772,611)
(3,628,175)
(2,167,267)
(1,144,595)

(4,738,673)

(4,990,211)

(6,769,360)
(21,546)

(1,144,595)
(335,640)

(3,ss3,409)
(2,414,830)
(1,074,749)

(335,640)

(366,817)

(23,829,405) (23,167,272)

(23,829,405)

(506,926) (506,926)
(23,829,405) (506,926)

Q4.336.331)

(507,794)

(23,675,066)

20,282,826

20,282,826

2,899,610

2,899,610

304,931

1,031,932

1,031,932

1,025,882

353,783

353,783

145,427

42,864,738

19.964.241

(506,926) 231,820

(3,710,825)

8,702,533

42,306j16
$ 43,044,862

$

55,338,613

51,567,271

(47,976\

(558,622)

I 794

24.568.151

24,568,151

738,746

18,478,207

(606,5e8)

(60,517)

8,654,557 50,960,673
8.147.631

$

51.192,493

$

55,278,096
51.567.271
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CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
December 31,2018
(With summarized financial information as of December 31 , 2017)

General

Assets

$

Cash and investments
Receivables
Taxes receivable
Delinquent property taxes

175

12,782,507 $

$

4,898,865

11,399,365
645,051

Accounts
Advances to other funds
Due from other funds

County
Roads
& Bridoes

Human
Services

473,843

I

,1

1,385,208

741,254

13,940

2,442

2,099,558

47,678

lnventories
Prepaid items

19,988

223,862

385

lnsurance capital deposits

Totalassets
Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances
Liabilities:

$

Accounts payable
Advances from general fund
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources:
Property taxes levied for subsequent year

Special assessments
Loans receivable
Total deferred inflows of resources

1

,269,632

$

r,064,556 $

69,658

47,678
2,266

r,339,290

1,114,500

12,144,909

4,898,865

741,254

4,898,865

741,254

10,659

12,155,568

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned
Totalfund balances

2,951,598

1,945,549

1,387,650

9,354,747

14,251,894

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances

$

27.746.752

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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1,387,650

$

6,013.365

$

2.128.904

County
Sales

Tax

$

Debt Service
Fund

Capital
Proiects

841,245

$

SS,¡90

$

15,161

Total

Other
Governmental
Funds
$

2,643,376

2,657,005

Governmental Funds
2018
2017

$

17,723,068

$

20,514,489

818,000

19,621,500
652,579

645,051

456,190

327,831

13,741,366

2,374,246

2,762,214

2,099,558

4,865,775

47,678
24,952
236,014

19,988
224,247

900

$

$

-

ss,sgo

$

$

277,566 $

2,667,150 $

2,750,168

55,396

47,678

-

258,212 330,136
535,778 3,044,964

2,657,005

818,000

447,375

-

,169,076

'u,*,

1,169,076

s

1.169.076

55.396

S

2.672166

S

1,719,736

?,l3å,jj;
9,354,747

3.917.566

22

S

582,223
20,877,122
5,735,029

2,116,413 18,940,194

15,161

S

,'33;?å3

395,690
6,015,250

20,282,826
12,073

21,260,033
10,659
447,375

2,657,005 1,265,375 21,718,067

1

2,869,392

43.703.225

S

4,263,951
3,348,212
15,066,928
41

.959.300

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
December 31,2018
(With summarized financial information as of December 31,2017)

RECONCILIATION TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

$

Total fund balances as shown on previous page

$

15,066,928

42,885,874

45,554,316

18,940,194

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Other long-term assets are not available to pay current period expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds.
Net pension asset
Loans receivable
Accounts receivable

2,727,321

447,375
203,154

Some deferred outflows and inflows of resources reflect changes in
long-term liabilities and are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits
Deferred inflows related to other postemployment benefits

4,983,545

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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5,684,126
(2,363,503)

(5,422,242)
271,292
(29,128)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Bonds and notes payable
Capital leases
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Other postemployment benefit liability
Accrued interest on long-term obligations
Net position of governmental activities as reported on the statement
of net position (see page 18)

582,223
301,545

78,128
(21,555)

(15,940,000)
(81e,011)
(1,967,526)

(15,385,000)
(1,648,403)
(2,030,517)

(738,448)
(2,190,782)

(3,201,648)
(34.338)

$

43.044.862

e4320\

$

42.864.738

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Governmental Funds
Year
Ended December 31,2018
For the
(With summarized financial information for the year ended December 31,2017)

General

Revenues
Taxes

$

11,640,151

$

98,378
1,731,310
354,727
652,097

lnterest
Miscellaneous

4,802,401

$

7,507,236

1,831,426

lntergovernmental
Regulation and compliance
Public charges for services

County
Roads
& Bridqes

Human
Services

1,792,594

16,308,089 14,102,231

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government

633,019
981,362

1,614,381

5,927,820
6,564,673
33,205
162,240

Public safety
Sanitation
Health and social services
Public works
Education and recreation
Conservation and development
Debt service:
Principal retirement
lnterest and other charges
Total expenditures

13,691,201

1,562,100
1,830,960
1,640,459
842,527

17,001,884 13,691,201

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (u nder) expenditures

(693,795)

Other flnancing sources (uses)
Long term debt issued
Premium on long term debt issued
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

411.030

1,562,100

52.281

612,799
(396,574)

216,225

(411,030)
(411,030)

(477,570)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

52,281

14,729,464

$

Fund balances - ending

14,2s1

,894

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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1.335.369
$

$

1,387,650

County
Sales

$

2,615,609

Debt Service

Capital
Proiects

Tax

Fund

$ 2'528'136 t

$

Total
Governmental
2018
2017

Other
Governmental
Funds

,,,3?i:å?3

$

23,182,436

21,297
2,694,574

6,587

14,400

2,436,223

I,446,533

376,351

.169,076

(369.764)

3,232,527

2,340,000

383,231

383,231

2,773,231

4.706.386 41,557,686

373,219
47,719,165

870.657

n0.434.289\

(245,095)

546.924

57,609
188,525

208,515
(466)
3,153,049

I

.169.076

$

6,355,231
7,148,689

2,390,000

2,945,000

$

414,143
37,284.876

3,901,104
1,882,360

2,028,262
241,901

I ,169,076

652,097

15,626,r 39
8,685,035
5,429,863
1,760,989

41,882

1

167,784

2,919,828

56,956

1,300,772

1

361 ,314

5,978,786
6,936,981
33,205
16,289,664

36,566
240,947

131,361

125,277
5,613,11

5.253,310 42.428,343

2,528,136

19,783,138

12,181,423

6,218,478

6,587
2,615,609

$

11,894,343
1 19,675

(201,769)

(201,769)

246,134

2,945,000
57,609
1,009,839
(1,009,839)
3,002,609

1,472,943
(1.472,9431

2,783,285

1,039

345,155

3,873,266

(10,434,289)

Q.783.285\

14,122

1.771.258

15.066.928

25.501.217

$

15,161

s

2.116.413
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s

18.940.194

$

15.066.928

CALUMET COU NTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Forthe Year Ended December 31,2018
(With summarized information for the year ended December 31,2017)

2017

RECONCILIATION TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

$

Net change in fund balances as shown on previous page

3,873,266

$

(10,434,28e)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Capital assets reported as capital outlay in governmental fund statements
Depreciation expense reported in the statement of activities
Net book value of disposals

Governmental funds do not present revenues that are not available to pay
current obligations. ln contrast, such revenues are reported in the statement
of activities when earned.
Net pension asset
Loans receivable
Accounts receivable

2,727,321
(98,391)

(2,e45,000)
(13,135)
2,390,000
842,527

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds:
Accrued interest on long-term debt
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
Other postemployment benefits liability
Deferred outflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits
Deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

26

(161,335)
(21,070)

(r 34,848)

Debt issued provides current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
Long-term debt issued
Capital leases issued
Long-term debt principal paid
Capital leases principal paid

Change in net position of governmental activities as reported in the
statement of activities (see pages 19 - 20)

2,856,027
(4,176,s85)
(23,731)

3,162,578
(4,207,374)
(1,623,646)

2,340,000
6,620

(10,018)

6,612
(150,5e1)

62,991

738,448
(700,581)
(3,058,739)
(452,244)

699,221

(2,324,338)
685,493

(164,424)
(6,2e7)

193,164
573

$

738.746

I

$

(10.865.259)

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 201 B

Final
Budqet

Original
Budqet

Revenues
Taxes
lntergovernmental
Regulation and compliance
Public charges for services

lnterest
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

$

,635,150
2,526,341
96,020
1,584,766
150,300
430,684

11

$

16,423,261

11,635,150

2,734,515
96,020
1,584,766
150,300
430,684
16,631,435

Actual
Amounts

$ 11,640,151

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Neqative)
$

5,00r
(903,089)

1,931,426
98,378
1,731,310
354,727
652.097

2,358
146,544
204,427

16.308.089

221.413
(323,346)

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Sanitation
Health and social services
Education and recreation
Conservation and development
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

624,390
137,539

33,205
162,240
1,837,666
1.640.459

91,611

6,552,210

7,406,960
124,816
170,835
1,907,772

7,538,033

2,166,344

18,168,137

2,344,O48
18,800,320

17.001.884

8,595
232,712
703.589
1,798.436

(1.744,876\

(2,168,885)

(693.795)

1.475,090

15,800
(188,059)

124,816
170,835

2,070,378

(172,259)

15,800
(409,853)
(3e4,053)

612,799
(396,574)

596,999

216,225

610,278

(477,570)

Net change in fund balance

(1,917,135)

(2,562,938)

Fund balance - beginning

14,729,464

14,729,464

Fund balance - ending

5,927,820
7,400,494

6,391 ,410
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2,085,368

14.729.464

s 12,812,329 $ 12,166,526 $ 14,251,894

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement

13,279

$

2,085,368

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Human Services - Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

Original
Budoet

Revenues
Taxes

$

4,802,401

$

Actual

Amounts

4,802,401

4,802,401

$

7,825,653

7,825,653
2,006,869

lntergovernmental
Public charges for services
Total revenues

Final

Budqet

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Neoative)
$

7,507,236
1,792,594

2,006,869

14,634,923 14,634,923 14,102,231

Expenditures

14,634,923 14,650,220

Health and social services
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing uses
Transfers out

411,030

426,327

(411,030)
(15,297)

Net change in fund balance

(532,692)

959,019

13,691,201

(15,297)

(318,417)
(214,275)

(411,030)
15,297

Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

$

$

(15.297) s

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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s

15.297

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
County Roads & Bridges - Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Original
Budoet

Revenues
Taxes
lntergovernmental
Total revenues

$

Expenditures
Public works

$

633,019

981,362

1,594,544

1.594.544

1,614,381

19,837
19,837

,562,100

62,444

52,281

82,281

(30,000)

1,335,369

s

$

961.525

(30,000)

Fund balance - beginning

633,019

$

961,525

1,624,544 1,624,544

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - ending

633,019

Actual
Amounts

Final

Budqet

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Neqative)

1.305.369

1,335,369

s

1.305 369

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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1

1,335,369

$

1.387.650

S

82.281

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2018

(With summarized financial information as of December

31

,2017)
Hiohwav Operations
2017

2418

Assets
Current assets:
Petty cash
Accounts receivable
lnventories
Prepaid expenses

$

50$

50

206,729

440,563
237,971
5,892

198,121
11,741

416,641

Total current assets

684,476

Noncurrent Assets:
200,000

Committed cash and investments
Net pension asset
Capitalassets:

200,000

234,233
26,191
B,189,785

Land

Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

26,191

8,172,425
6,747,189

7,190,449
4,980,399
11,276,900

4,507,777
10,638,028
11,322,504

422,308
26,323

494,913
9,098

10,860,259

TotalAssets
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows related to pension
Deferred outflows related to OPEB
Total deferred outflows of resources

448,631

504,011

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
AcÇounts payable
Advances from general fund
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Total current liabilities

451,261
2,099,558
81,833

329,941
2,115,607

24,618

29,747
64,697

1

2,657,270

Noncurrent iabilities:
Com pensated absences payable
Other postemployment health benefits liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total Liabilities

,318

2,541,310

I

73,854
378,028

451,882
3,109,152

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows related to pension
Deferred inflows related to OPEB
Total deferred inflows of resources

89,242
283,497

372,739
2,914,049

465,683
3,065
468,748

207,073

10,426,026

10,638,028

2,860
209.933

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for pension benefits
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total Net Position

234,233
(2,512,628\

$

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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8,147,631

$

(1,935,495)
8,702,533

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
(With summ arized financial information for the year ended December 31, 2017)

Highway Operations

2018

Operating revenues
Charges for services

$

4,976,749

2017

$

4,651,823

Operating expenses
4,888,070
564,324

Highway operations
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

5,452,394
(475,645)

Operating loss

4,704,391
455,226
5,159,617

(507,794)

Nonoperating revenues (expense)
(31,281)

Gain (loss) on capital assets

(506,926)

Net loss before capital contributions

(5O7,794)

7,662,228

Capital contributions

(506,926)

Net income (loss)

Total net position - beginning, as previously reported

8,702,533

1,581,967

(47,976)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Total net position - beginning, restated

$

Total net position - ending

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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7,154,434

(33,868)

8,654,557

1,548,099

S

8.702,533

8.r47.631

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31,2018
(With summ arized financial information for the year ended December 31, 2017)

Hiqhwav Operations

2018
Gash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from interfund services provided
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

2017

2,071,029

2,734,574

(1,998,797)

(3,554,387)
(806,650)
140 128

(2,692,649\
599 652

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Advances returned to the generalfund
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

1,766,591

$

3,220,069

(16,049)
04

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash used by capital and related
financing activities

101 ,635
101

(583,603)

(241,763\

(583,603)

(241,763\

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - January I

200,050

200,050

Cash and cash equivalents - December 31

$

200.050

$

200.050

Reconciliation of operating loss to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash provided by operating activities:

$

(475,645)

$

(507,794)

Depreciation
Change in pension and OPEB related assets and deferred outflows
Change in pension and OPEB related liabilities and deferred inflows
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
lnventories
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Com pensated absences payable
Net cash provided by operating activities
Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Building transferred from governmental activities

32

455,226

203,546

240,673

(100,601)

233,834

$

5,834
(16,135)
90,308
1,276
8,468
140,128

$

7.662.228

34,001

121,320
80,515

(20,517)

$
$

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement

564,324
(r 78,853)

599.652

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31,2018

NOTE

1: SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of Calumet County, Wisconsin (the "County''), have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting principles and
policies utilized by the County are described below:

A. REPORTING ENTITY
Calumet County is a municipal corporation governed by an elected twenty-one member board. ln accordance with
GAAP, the basic financial statements are required to include the County and any separate component units that
have a significant operational or financial relationship with the County. The County has not identified any
component units that are required to be included in the basic financial statements in accordance with standards
established in GASB Statement No. 61.

B. GOVERNMENT.WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the County. For the most part, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from busrness-fype activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for services.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Governmental funds
include general, special revenue, debt service and capital projects funds. Proprietary funds include enterprise
funds. The County has no internal service funds. Major individual governmentalfunds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund
This is the County's primary operating fund. lt accounts for all financial resources of the general government,
except those accounted for in another fund.
Human Services Fund
This fund accounts for the County's many comprehensive and integrated programs which deal with the physical,
social, mental, emotional, economic, vocational and nutritional needs of individuals and families. Primary
revenues consist of property taxes, federal and state aids.

County Roads and Bridges Fund
This fund accounts for the financial resources of the County's road and bridge system. Primary revenues consist
of property taxes, federal and state aids.

County Sales Tax Fund
This fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the future acquisition or construction of capital
expenditures. Primary revenues consist of sales tax proceeds.
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Capital Projects Fund
This fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities
Primary revenues consist of debt proceeds.

Debt Service Fund
This fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the payment of long{erm principal and interest of debt.

The County reports the following major proprietary fund:
Highway operations fund accounts for the activities associated with the maintenance and/or construction of
roadways located within the County.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types
restricted for specific purposes. Non-major special revenue funds consist of the following:

Nursing
Handicapped
Maintenance

Home
School for
Jail

Land Records
Economic Development Loans
Dog Licenses

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measuremenf focus and
lhe accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financialresources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is
due.

Revenues susceptible to accrual include intergovernmental grants, intergovernmental charges for services, public
charges for services and interest. Other revenues such as licenses and permits, fines and forfeits and
miscellaneous revenues are recognized when received in cash or when measurable and available.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the County's public works function and various
other functions of the County. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, and fees and fines, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. lnternally dedicated resources are reported as generalrevenues rather than as program revenues
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County's enterprise fund
are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the costs of services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION OR
FUND BALANCE

1.

Cash and Investments
Cash and investments are combined in the financial statements. Cash deposits consist of demand and time
deposits with financial institutions and are carried at cost. lnvestments are stated at fair value. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all cash deposits and highly liquid
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less from date of acquisition are
considered to be cash equivalents.

2.

Property Tax Apportionments
Property taxes are apportioned annually in November to local taxing units within the County for financing state
charges and the subsequent year's operations of the County. Since the November apportionment is not due
from local taxing districts until February of the subsequent year, the County's apportionment is recorded as a
deferred inflows of resources at year-end. Property tax payments from individual property owners are due in
two installments by January 31 and July 31. During the month of February, each local taxing district settles
with the County for both collected and unpaid property taxes. At the February settlement, the County
becomes responsible for the collection of unpaid property taxes, including unpaid property taxes returned by
local taxing districts for financing their individual operations. Property taxes subsequently not paid by property
owners by September I of the same year are considered delinquent. The delinquent taxes are then acquired
by the County's General Fund in accordance with state statutes in order to provide the County with a statutory
lien.

Property taxes of $21,174,475 are recorded on December 31 , 2018 for collection in 2019 for the County
apportionment. The County apportionment is for financing 2019 operations and will be transferred in 2019
from deferred inflows of resources to current revenues of the County's governmental and proprietary funds

3.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at gross amounts with uncollectible amounts recognized under the direct
write-off method. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been provided since it is believed that the
amount of such allowance would not be material to the basic financial statements.

4.

Loans Receivable
The County has received federal and state grant funds for economic development and housing rehabilitation
loan programs and has passed the funds to various businesses and individuals in the form of loans. The
County records a loan receivable and expenditure when the loan has been made and the funds disbursed. No
allowance for uncollectible accounts has been provided since it is believed that the amount of such allowance
would not be material to the basic financial statements. ln the governmental funds, the County records a
deferred inflow of resources for the net amount of the receivable. As the loans are repaid, revenue is
recognized. Any unspent loan proceeds are presented as restricted fund balance in the fund financial
statements.
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5.

6.

lnterfund Receivables and Payables
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or
services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds" and "due to other
funds" in the fund financial statements. Noncurrent portions of the interfund receivables for the governmental
funds are reported as "advances to other funds" and are offset by nonspendable fund balance since they do
not constitute expendable available financial resources and therefore are not available for appropriation.
The amount reported on the statement of net position for internal balances represents the residual balance
outstanding between the governmental and business-type activities.

lnventories
lnventories are recorded at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, firstout method. lnventories
consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time
individual inventory items are consumed rather than when purchased.
lnventories of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are offset by nonspendable fund balance to
indicate that they do not represent spendable available financial resources.

7.

Prepaid ltems
Payments made to vendors that will benefit periods beyond the end of the current fiscal year are recorded as
prepayments and are accounted for on the consumption method.
Prepaid items of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are offset by nonspendable fund
balance to indicate that they do not represent spendable available financial resources.

8.

CapitalAssets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or higher and an
estimated useful life in excess of a year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the
date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
asset lives are not capitalized.
Capital assets of the County are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:
Governmental
Activities
Assets
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure

9.

Business-type
Activities
Years

20
50

15-50

5-25

3-25

20 - 100

GompensatedAbsences
It is the County's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave
benefits in accordance with employee handbook policies and/or bargaining unit agreements. Allvacation and
sick leave is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A
liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds in the fund financial statements only if they
have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.
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10. Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources are a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a
future reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources are an acquisition of net position by the government that
is applicable to a future reporting period. The recognition of those outflows and inflows as expenses or
expenditures and revenues are deferred until the future periods to which the outflows and inflows are
applicable.

Governmentalfunds may report deferred inflows of resources for unavailable revenues. The County reports
unavailable revenues for loan receivables. These inflows are recognized as revenues in the government-wide
financial statements.

11. Long-term Obligations
ln the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds when considered material. Bonds payable are reported net
of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond ìssuance costs are expensed as incurred.
ln the fund financial statements, governmentalfunds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. lssuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

12. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) and additions to/deductions from WRS'fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by WRS. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. lnvestments are reported at fair value.

13. Other Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)
Qualifying employees are provided with other postemployment benefits. The OPEB is a single employer
defined benefit plan administered by the County. For purposes of measuring the OPEB liability, related
deferred outflows and inflows and OPEB expense, the County has used values provided by their actuary.
Benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
14. Fund Equity
Governmental Fund Fi nancial Súaúemenfs
Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any limitations
requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The following classifications describe the relative
strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used:
or long-term receivables) or are legally or contractually required to remain intact.
as grantor or bondholders), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.
Board. These constraints can only be removed or changed by the County Board using the same action
that was used to create them.
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management. The County Board has not authorized a County position to assign fund balance. Residual
amounts in any governmental fund, other than the General Fund, are also reported as assigned.
are only reported in the General Fund.

The County has not adopted a fund balance spend-down policy regarding the order in which fund balance will
be utilized. When a policy does not specify the spend-down policy, GASB Statement No. 54 indicates that
restricted funds would be spent first, followed by committed funds, and then assigned funds. Unassigned
funds would be spent last.
G overn m ent-Wi d e a n d P rop ri etary F u n d Súafemenús
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

related deferred outflows of resources less outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets and
any capital related deferred inflows of resources.

external groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments or
2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
capitalassets.

E. USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

F. PRIOR YEAR INFORMATION
Comparative amounts for the prior year have been presented in the basic financial statements to provide an
understanding of changes in the County's financial position and operations. The comparative amounts may be
summarized in total and not at the level of detail required for a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the government's financial
statements for the year ended December 31,2017, from which the summarized information was derived.

G. RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the presentation in
the current year financial statements with no change in previously reported net position, changes in net position,
fund balance or changes in fund balance.
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NOTE 2: STEWARDSHIP AND COMPLIANCE
A. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. The County prepares an annual budget in accordance with Chapter 65 of the Wisconsin Statutes for each
year ending December 31.
The County adopts annual appropriated budgets for the general, special revenue, debt service, capital project, and
enterprise funds. For the proprietary fund types, the budget is viewed as an approved operating plan.
During September and October of each year, all departments of Calumet County submit written requests for
appropriations to the County Administrator so that a budget may be prepared.
The County's Administrator and the Administrative Services Committee hold several budgetary review meetings to
consider departmental budgets.

Any modifications of budget items as a result of these meetings require notification to the departments and/or
comm ittees of jurisdiction.

lf the department or committee of jurisdiction request to be heard in rebuttal, the County's Administrator and the
Administrative Services Committee shall grant that opportunity.

1.

2.

ln October, the preliminary budget as approved by the Administrative Services Committee is introduced by
the County Administrator to the County Board of Supervisors. Fifteen days before final adoption of the
budget, a public hearing notice is posted, and the public is invited to inspect the budget. The public hearing
on the budget is held. Discussion and/or changes may be made to the budget. Subsequently, the final
version of the budget is approved (a majority vote of members present is required) through the County's
property tax resolution and the budget is formally adopted at the functional level of expenditures.
Major budgetary transfers and changes must be introduced by the Administrative Services Committee
through resolutions. All such resolutions must be approved by the County Board of Supervisors. Minor
budgetary transfers and changes, defined as ten percent or less of a department's annual approved budget,
are approved by the County's Finance Director. The final budgeted amounts presented in the basic financial

3.

statements include any amendments made.
All annual appropriations lapse at year-end unless specifically authorized as non-lapsing appropriations by
the County's Administrative Services Committee. The portion of fund balance representing non-lapsing
appropriations is reported as a committed fund balance.

4.

Encumbrance accounting is used by the County as an extension of formal budgetary control during the
year. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end (e.9., construction related purchase orders and contracts) are
reported as committed fund balances.
The County did not have any material violations of legal or contractual provisions for the fiscal year ended
December 31,2018.

B. PROPERTY TAX LEVY LIMIT
Wisconsin state statutes provide for a limit on the property tax levies for all Wisconsin cities, villages, towns and
counties. For the 2018 and 2019 budget years, Wisconsin Statutes limit the increase in the maximum allowable
tax levy to the change in the County's January 1 equalized value as a result of net new construction. The actual
limit for the County for the 2018 budgelwas 2.29o/o. The actual limit for the County for the 2019 budget was
2.50o/o. Debt service for debt authorized after July 1, 2005 is exempt from the levy limit. ln addition, Wisconsin
statutes allow the limit to be adjusted for the increase in debt service authorized prior to July 1, 2005 and in
certain other situations.
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NOTE 3: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
The County maintains various cash and investment accounts, including pooled funds that are available for use by
all funds. Each fund's portion of these accounts is displayed on the financial statements as "Cash and
investments".

lnvested cash consists of deposits and investments that are restricted by Wisconsin Statutes to the following
Time deposits; repurchase agreements; securities issued by federal, state and local governmental
entities; statutorily authorized commercial paper and corporate securities; and the Wisconsin local
government investment pool.
The carrying amount of the County's cash and investments totaled $17,923,11 7 on December
summarized below:
Petty cash and cash on hand
Deposits with financial institutions
lnvestments
U.S. Treasury securities
Money market mutual fund
Federal National Mortgage Association
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Federal Home Loan Bank
Federal Farm Credit Bureau
Wisconsin local government investment pool

31 , 2018 as

2,040

$

6,736,364
371,268
838,951

1,141,898
714,752

732,348
2,586,292

4,799.204

_811Å23.117
Reconciliation to the basic financial statements
Government-wide statement of net position
Cash and investments
Committed cash and investments

$ 17,723,117
200,000
17.923.117

s

Fair Value Measurements
The County categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally \
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of
the asset. Level I inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The County has the following fair value
measurements as of December 31,2018:
Fair Value Measurements Using
1
Level 2
Level 3

Level
lnvestments
U.S. Treasury securities
Money market mutual fund
Federal National Mortgage Association
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Federal Home Loan Bank
Federal Farm Credit Bureau

$-

$

371,268

$

838,951

1,141,898
714,752

732,348

$

2,586,292
838.9s1

_$lé!6.55!!_

s

Deposits and investments of the County are subject to various risks. Presented below is a discussion of the
County's deposits and investments and the related risks.
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Gustodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposrfs is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparty (e.9., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. Wisconsin statutes require
repurchase agreements to be fully collateralized by bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal
government or its instrumentalities. The County has the following additional custodial credit policy.

willdo business.

Deposits with financial institutions within the State of Wisconsin are insured by the Federal Deposit lnsurance
Corporation (FDIC) in the amount of $250,000 for the combined amount of all time and savings deposits and
$250,000 for interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing demand deposits per official custodian per insured
depository institution. Deposits with financial institutions located outside the State of Wisconsin are insured by the
FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for the combined amount of all deposit accounts per official custodian per
depository institution. Deposits with credit unions are insured by the National Credit Union Share lnsurance Fund
(NCUSIF) in the amount of $250,000 per credit union member. Also, the State of Wisconsin has a State
Guarantee Fund which provides a maximum of $400,000 per public depository above the amount provided by an
agency of the U.S. Government. However, due to the relatively small size of the State Guarantee Fund in relation
to the Fund's total coverage, total recovery of insured losses may not be available. This coverage has been
considered in determining custodial credit risk.
As of December 31 ,2018, $1,196,297 of the County's deposits with financial institutions were in excess of federal
and state depository insurance limits, which was fully collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution or its trust department or an agent.

Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Wisconsin statutes limit investment in securities to the top two ratings assigned by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations. Presented below is the actual rating as of the year-end for each
investment type.

lnvestment Tvpe
U.S. Treasury securities
Money market mutual fund
Federal National Mortgage
Association
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation
Federal Home Loan Bank
Federal Farm Credit Bureau
Wisconsin local government
investment pool
Totals

Amount

Exempt
from
Disclosure

$ 371,268 $ 371,268

$

$

838,951

838,951

1,141,898

1

714,752
732,348
2,586,292

714,752
732,348
2,586,292

4.799.204

$ 11.184.713

Not
Rated

AAA

s

371.268
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Concentration of Credit Risk
The investment policy of the County contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer
lnvestments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutualfunds, and external investment pools)
that represent 5% or more of total County investments are as follows:

lnves{ment Type

Amount

Percent of
Total
lnvestments

Bonds
Bonds
Bonds
Bonds

$ 1,141,898

1Oo/o

Reported
lssuer
Federal National Mortgage Association
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Federal Home Loan Bank
Federal Farm Credit Bureau

714,752

60/o

732,348
2,586,292

7o/o

23o/o

lnterest Rate Risk
lnterest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. The County has the following formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates:
operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity.

investment pools.
lnformation about the sensitivity of the fair values of the County's investments to market interest rate fluctuations
is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the County's investments by maturity:

lnrestment Type
U.S Treasury securities
Money market mutual fund

$

Amount
371,268
838,951

12 Months
or Less

Remaining Maturity (in Months)
25 to 60
13 lo 24
Months
$

$

$

Months

371,268

More Than

60 Months
$

838,9s1

Federal National Mortgage

Association

1 ,

Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation
Federal Home Loan Bank
Federal Farm Credit Bureau

141

1,141,898

,898

394,736
227,196

320,016

1,084,106

1,502,186

714,752

732,348
2,586,292

505,1 52

Wisconsin local gorcmment
inrcstment pool
Totals

4,799,204

TilJs-4m

4,799,204

$

6,780,053 $ 1,706,038 $ 2,698,622

$

lnvestments with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to lnterest Rate Fluctuations
The County's investments include the following investments that are highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations
(to a greater degree than already indicated in the information provided above):
Fair Value
at Year End

Highly Sensitirc lnrestments

$

payment in a period of declining interest rates. The resultant reduction
in expected total cash flows afiects the fair wlue of these securities
and makes the fair wlues of these securities highly sensitiw to
changes in interest rates.
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Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool
The County has investments in the Wisconsin Local Government lnvestment Pool of $4,799,204 at year-end. The
LGIP is part of the State lnvestment Fund (SlF), and is managed by the State of Wisconsin lnvestment Board.
The SIF is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory
authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in
the LGIP have the right to withdraw their funds in total on one day's notice. At December 31 , 2018, the fair value
of the County's share of the LGIP's assets was substantially equal to the carrying value.
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Wisconsin statues limit investments in securities to the top two ratings assigned by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations. The County does not have an additional credit risk policy. The County's
investment in the Wisconsin Local Government lnvestment Pool is not rated.

lnterest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. The County does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The
investment held by the Wisconsin Local Government lnvestment Pool mature in 12 months or less.

B, DELINQUENT PROPERTY TAXES - GENERAL FUND
Delinquent property taxes of the General Fund represent unpaid property taxes on real estate, including state and
local government equities therein. Under state statutes, the County annually reimburses the state and local
governments for their equities in property taxes not collected from the property owner. Unless redeemed by the
property owner, the County will eventually obtain tax deed ownership of the properties comprising delinquent
taxes. ln the past, the County has generally been able to recover its investment in delinquent taxes by sale of the
tax deeded properties.
On December 31 , 2018, the County's general fund showed an investment of $632,156 in delinquent taxes as
follows:
Tax certificates
Tax deeds

$

Total

$

628,608
3,548
632,156

An aging of the delinquent taxes and special assessments of $632,156 on December
Year

Acquired

Pnor to 2012

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017

Tax deeds
Total

31

,2018 follows

General
$

1,051
2
2

4,438
28,674
185,422
409,019
628,608

3,548
-S:€_3re

Of the total of $632,156 for delinquent taxes and special assessments, $78,866 was collected within 60 days of
year-end. The remaining balance of $553,290 is recorded as nonspendable fund balance for the general fund.
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C. COMMITTED ASSETS
Committed assets on December 31,2018 totaled $200,000 and consisted of cash and investments held for the
following purpose:
Funds
Proprietary Fund
Highway operations

Amount

$

200.000

Purpose
Available funds committed to Calumet County Highway
Department. These funds can be used for highway capital
asset purchases.

D. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended December

31

, 2018 was as follows

Beginning
Balance

Ending
Balance

Decreases

lncreases

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, nondepreciable:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, nondepreciable
Capital assets, depreciable:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure
Subtotals

$

3,536,318
1,493,172
5,029,490

$

$

915,483

915,483

5,425,335
14,032,891
10,241,198

1,605,719

81,713,210

1,390,764

4,581,164
5,425,335
14,647,312
8,633,645

614,421

3,213,272

45,5s4,316

1,589,626

3,747,167
7,269,099
4,413,091
58,076,199
73,505,556

1,623,646

38,304,710

2,987,455

42,885,874

286,374
1,589,626

842,119
2,886,718

4,207,374
(596,470)

40,524,826

$

83 103 974

111,810,266

192,163

3,555,004
6,982,725
5,160,598
55,189,481
70,887,808

Total capital assets, depreciable, net

3,536,318
1,044,846

1,363,809
1,363,809

111,412,634 3,610,904 3,213,272

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure
Subtotals

Governmental activities capital assets, net

$

$

319,013 $

16,759,01 I

Less: Capital related general obligation debt
Net investment in capital assets

$

26.126,863

$

26,191

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, nondepreciable:
Land

$

Capital assets, depreciable:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Subtotals
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Subtotals
Total capital assets, depreciable, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net

$

26,1e1

$

$

8,172,425
6,747,189
14,919,614

17,360
566,243
583,603

436,243

4,071,534

170,419
393,905

91

4,507,777

564,324

10,411,837

10.438.028

$

122 983

8,189,785
7,190,449
15,380,234

702

91 .702

606,662
4,373,737
4,980,399

19,279

31,281

l0 399 835

19.279 $

3l

10,426,026

122,983

.281

Less: Capital related debt

$

Net investment in capital assets
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the County as follows
Gowrnmental activities
General gorcmment
Public safety
Public works
Health and social services
Education and recreation
Consenation and dewlopment
Total depreciation expense - go\emmental activities

$

Business-type activities
Highway operations

612,032
484,153

$

2,856,788
22,884
221,323
10,194
4,207,374

$

saq,szq

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLE, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS
lnterfund receivables and payables between individual funds of the County, as reported in the fund financial
statements, as of December 31 ,2018 are detailed below:
lnterfund
Receivables
Long-term advances to finance
operating cash deficits
Governmental fund
General
Proprietary fund
Highway operations
Subtotal
Temporary cash advances
to finance operating cash deficits
Governmental funds
General
Human Services

$

lnterfund
Payables

2,099,558

$

2,099,558

2.099,558
2,099,558

47,678
47.678

s

Totals

2.147.236

S

2j47236

lnterfund transfers for the year ended December 31,2018 were as follows
Transfer
Fund
General

ln
$

Capital Projects
Debt Service
Human Services
Home Nursing

Jail Maintenance

612,799
208,515
188,525

-$-i.o-og,.8-35,-

Transfer
Out
396,574
$
466
411,030
186,518
15,251

-f-i;fo0¡-'90-

Transfers were used for the following purposes

$

Excess fund balance transfer
Reimburse capital projects for technology upgrades
Debt service payments
Jail improrements

597,548
208,515
188,525
15,251

-$l,o-og,8-.50,-
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F. LONG.TERM OBLIGATIONS
The following is a summary of changes in long{erm obligations of the County for the year ended December 31,

2018:
Beginning

Balance

lssued

15,385,000
1,648,403

$2,945,000

Retired

Ending
Balance

Due Within
One Year

Governmental activities:
General obligation debt
Bonds
Capital leases

Compensated absences
Gowmmental activities
Long-term obligations
Busi nes+type activities:

Compensated absences

$

3,1 35

2,390,000
842,527

1,967,526

2,030,517

1

2,030,517

$

$15,940,000

$

819,011

1,967,526

491,882

$19,063,920 $4,925,661 $5,263,044 $18,726,537 $

$

118,989

g 98,472 $

118,989

2,290,000

819,011

3,600,893

$ s8,472 $

24,618

Total interest paid during the year on long-term debt totaled $326,195
General Obligation Debt
General obligation debt currently outstanding is detailed as follows
Date of
General
General
General
General
General

obligation
obligation
obligation
obligation
obligation

lnterest
Rates

11t1t20

10t6t14
12t1t15

12t1t23

2.25-3.00o/o
2.00-2.30o/o

11t1125

1.00-2.00%

1117116

1211125

2.00o/o

11t19118

1211127

3.50%

2,945,000

w

notes
notes
notes
notes
notes

Final

Maturity

Original
lndebtedness
$ 5,000,000
3,200,000
5,000,000
7,640,000

lssue

Total outstanding general obligation debt

Balance

$

12131118

,810,000
1,950,000
4,080,000
5,155,000
2,945,000
1

$ 15,940.000

Annual principal and interest maturities of the outstanding general obligation debt of $15,940,000 on
December 31,2018 are detailed below:
Year Ended
December 31,

T

2020
2021

2022
2023
2024-20207

Gowmmental Activities
lnterest
-$'371,978
n-0õ.0-o-o2,340,000
314,895
2,165,000
257,950
2,205,000
208,850
161,000
2,250,000
Principal

$

4,690,000 224,350

T-]se4o-OO0-T-T,s3e,o-f

Total

$z ,661,978
2 ,654,895
2 ,422,550

2,413,850
2,411,000
4,914,350

@_

For governmental activities, the other long-term liabilities are generally funded by the general fund

46

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2018

Legal Margin for New Debt
The County's legal margin for creation of additional general obligation debt on December
$1

31

, 201B was

94,828,986 as follows:

Equalized wluation of the Village
Statutory limitation percentage
General obligation debt limitation, per Section 67.03 of the
Wisconsin Statutes
Total outstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt limitation $
Less: Amounts arailable for financing general obligation debt
Debt service fund
Net outstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt limitation
Legal margin for new debt

$4,215,076,500
(x) 5%
210,753,825
15,940,000
1

5,1 61

15,924,839

-S-le4"B-2s-þs-6-

CapitalLease
The County has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of various units of
equipment for use in the County's governmental funds. Equipment acquired through these lease agreements
includes tractor/mower and radio equipment. No down payments were required for these lease agreements.
The agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at present
value of their future minimum lease payments as of the date of their inception. The cost of the capital assets
under capital leases is $1,661,538 and the related accumulated depreciation is $412,539 as of December 31,
2018.
The following is a schedule of the minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and the present values
of the minimum lease payments at December 31,2018:

Year Ending

Gowrnmental
Activities

?.019

$

842,251

Less: Amount representing interest
Present wlue of future minimum lease payments

$

819,011

23,240

G. PENSION PLAN
1. Plan Description
The WRS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan. WRS benefits and other plan
provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Benefit terms may only be modified by
the legislature. The retirement system is administered by the Wisconsin Department of Employee Trust Funds
(ETF). The system provides coverage to all eligible State of Wisconsin, local government and other public
employees. All employees, initially employed by a participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and
expected to work at least 1200 hours a yeat and expected to be employed for at least one year from
employee's date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS.
ETF issues a standalone Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), which can be found at
htto://etf .wi. qov/pu bl ications/cafr. htm.
For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively employed on or
after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for a retirement annuity.
Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998, and prior to July 1, 2011, are immediately
vested. Participants who initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1,2011, must have five years of
creditable service to be vested.
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Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupation employees, 62 for elected officials and
executive service retirement plan participants, if hired on or before December 31 , 2016) are entitled to a retirement
benefit based on a formula factor, their final average earnings, and creditable service.
Final average earnings is the average of the participant's three highest earnings periods. Creditable service
includes current service and prior service for which a participant received earnings and made contributions as
required. Creditable service also includes creditable military service. The retirement benefit will be calculated as a
money purchase benefit based on the employee's contributions plus matching employer's contributions, with
interest, if that benefit is higher than the formula benefit.

Vested participants may retire at or after age 55 (50 for protective occupations) and receive an actuarially-reduced
benefit. Participants terminating covered employment prior to eligibility for an annuity may either receive employeerequired contributions plus interest as a separation benefit or leave contributions on deposit and defer application
until eligible to receive a retirement benefit.
The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees.

2.

Post-Retirement Adjustments
The Employee Trust Funds Board may periodically adjust annuity payments from the retirement system
based on annual investment performance in accordance with s.40.27, Wis. Stat. An increase (or decrease) in
annuity payments may result when investment gains (losses), together with other actuarial experience factors,
create a surplus (shortfall) in the reserves, as determined by the system's consulting actuary. Annuity
increases are not based on cost of living or other similar factors. For Core annuities, decreases may be
applied only to previously granted increases. By law, Core annuities cannot be reduced to an amount below
the original, guaranteed amount (the "floor") set at retirement. The Core and Variable annuity adjustments
granted during recent years are as follows:
Year
2007
2008
2009

Adjustment

3o/o

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

6.6
(2.1)
(1.3)
(1.2)
(7.0)
(e.6)
4.7
2.9
0.5

2017

2

2010
2011

3.

Core Fund

Variable Fund Adjustment
10%
0

(42)
22
11

(7)

I

25
2
(5)

4

Contributions
Required contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation in accordance with Chapter 40 of the
Wisconsin Statutes. The employee required contribution is one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate
for general category employees, and Executives and Elected Officials. Starting on January 1,2016, the Executives
and Elected Officials category was merged into the General Employee Category. Required contribÄtions for
protective employees are the same rate as general employees. Employers are required to contribute the remainder
of the actuarially determined contribution rate. The employer may not pay the employee required contribution
unless provided for by an existing collective bargaining agreement.

During the year ending December 31,2018, the WRS recognized $1,053,342 in contributions from the
County.
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Contribution rates for the reporting period ending December 31,2017 are:

Cateoorv

Emplovee

Emolovee
General (including executives, and elected officials)
Protective with Social Security
Protective without Social Security

4.

Emplover

6.80/o

6.8o/o

6.8%

10.6%

6.8o/o

14.9o/o

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of
Resources Related to Pensions
At December 31,2018, the County reported a liability (asset) of $(2,961,554) for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset). The net pension liability (asset) was measured as of December 31,2017, and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of December 31 ,2016 rolled forward to December 31 , 2017. No material changes in
assumptions or benefit terms occurred between the actuarial valuation date and the measurement date. The
County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) was based on the County's share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers. At December 31,2017, the County's
proportion was 0.09974523Yo, which was an increase of 0.002304435% from its proportion measured as of
December 31,2016.
For the year ended December 31,2018, the County recognized pension expense of $1,269,219.
At Decembel 31,2018, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:
Defened Outflows
of Resources

Difierences between expected and actual experience
Net difierences between projected and actual
eamings on pension plan inwstments
Changes in assumptions
Changes in proportion and difierences between
employer contributions and proportionate share
of contributions
Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Total

$

3,762,727

Defened lnflows
of Resources
1,760,079
$
4,070,381

585,145

4,639

$

1,053,342
5,405,853

57,465

F

5,887,925

The $l ,053,342 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the County's contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability (asset) in
the year ended December 31,2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year Ended
December 31,
2019

Expense
$

2020

(1,029,000)
(774,583)

2021

2022
2023
Total

305,005
(43,491)

7,055

$

(1,535,414)
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5. Actuarial

Assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31 ,2017, actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Actuarial raluation date:
Measurement date of net pension liability (asset):
Actuarial cost method:
Asset wluation method:
Long-term expected rate of retum:
Discount rate:
Salary increases:

7.2%
7.2%
3.2%

lnflation

02% - 5.60/0
Wisconsin 2012 Mortality Table

Seniority/Merit
Mortality
Post-reti rement adjustments*

*

December 31,2016
December 31, 2017
Entry Age
Fair Market Value

2.1%

No post-retirement adjustment is guaranteed. Actual adjustments are based on recognized investment
return, actuarial experience and other factors. 21% is the assumed annual adjustment based on the

investment return assumption and the post-retirement discount rate.

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2015 using experience from 2012 2014.The total pension liability for Decembet 31,2017 is based upon a roll-forward of the liability calculated
from the December 31,2016 actuarial valuation.

Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assets. The longterm expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class are summarized in the following table:
Long-term

Long-term

Allocation %

Expected Nominal
Rate of Retum %

Expected Real
Rate of Retum %

Current Asset
Core Fund Asset Class
Global equities

50o/o

8.2%

5.3o/o

Fixed income

24.5o/o

4.2o/o

lnflation sensitirc assets
Real estate

15.5o/o

3.80/

1.4%
1.0%

8%

6.5%

3.6Yo

Prirate equity/debt
Multi-asset
Total Core Fund
Variable Fund Asset Class
U.S. equities
lntemational equities
TotalVariable Fund

8o/o

9.4Yo

4o/o

6.5%

6.5%
3.6%

11Oo/o

7.3o/o

4.4o/o

70o/o

7.5o/o

30o/o

7.8%
7.9%

4.6%
4.9%
5.0%

lOOo/o

New England Pension Consultants Long Term US CPI(lnflation) Forecast: 2.75%

Asset Allocations are managed within established ranges, target percentages may difier fom
actual monthly allocations.
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Singfe Discount Rate. A single discount rate of 720% was used to measure the total pension liability. This
single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.2Oo/o and a
long-term bond rate of 3.31%. Because of the unique structure of WRS, the 7 .20% expected rate of return
implies that a dividend of approximately 2.1% will always be paid. For purposes of the single discount rate, it
was assumed that the dividend would always be paid. The projection of cash flows used to determine this
single discount rate assumed that plan members contributions will be made at the current contribution rate
and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined
contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments (including expected
dividends) of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the County's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the
discount rate. The following presents the County's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
calculated using the discount rate of 7.2 percent, as well as what the County's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(6.20 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate:

to Cunent 1% lncrease to
Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(6.2oVo) (7.20%) (8.20%)

17o Decrease

Discount
County's proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset)

$

7,662,551

$

(2,961,554) $ (11,036,203)

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is
available in separately issued financial statements available at http://etf.wi.gov/publications/cafr.htm.

6.

Payables to the Pension Plan
At December 31,2018, the County reported no amount outstanding for contributions to the pension plan for
the year ended December 31,2018.

H. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
For the year ended December 31,2018, the County early implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, for its Local Retiree Life lnsurance Fund
(LRIF), a multiple-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan, completed an actuarial
study under GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plan, which identified a net
OPEB liability for the Plan. The County recorded its proportionate share of this liability as of December 31 ,2017
as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle in the 2018 government-wide financial statements.
Financial statements for the year ended December 31,2017 have not been restated.
The cumulative effect of this change was to decrease the December 31,2017 net position by $606,598 as
follows:
Other postem ployment liability (Governmental Activities)
OPEB liability balance previously reported
Actuarially determ ined balance
Change in other postemployment liability

$

606,598

$

(606.598)

The County reports OPEB related balances at December 31, 2018 as summarized below:

OPEB
Liability
Local Retiree Life lnsurance Fund (LRLIF)
Single-employer defined OPEB plan
Total pension liability

$

$

Deferred Outflows Deferred lnflows
of Resources of Resources

823,671
2,756,005

$

3,579,676

$

51

139,452

$

$

94,873

$

368,952
463,825

20 588

158,163

297,615

11,605

OPEB
Expense

$

32,193
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1.

Single-employer Defined Postemployment Benefit Plan

Plan Descríption
The Plan is a single-employer defined benefit postemployment health plan that covers retired employees of
the County. Eligible retired employees have access to group medical coverage through the County's group
plan. County paid medical benefits are paid for as indicated below. All employees of the County are eligible
for the Plan if they meet the following age and service requirements below.

Benefits Provided
The County provides medical (including prescription drugs) and dental coverage for retired employees
through the County's self-insured plans.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
At December 31,2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms
lnactiw employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments

Actiw employees

12

244

256

Contributíons
Certain retired plan members and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits are required to contribute
specified amounts monthly towards the cost of insurance premiums based on the employee group and their
retirement date. County paid medical and dental benefits are paid until the retiree or surviving spouse
becomes eligible for Medicare.
OPEB

Liability

The County's OPEB liability was measured as of December 31, 2017 , and was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of December 31 ,2016.

ActuarialAssumptions. The total OPEB liability in the December 31 ,2018 actuarialvaluation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement,
unless otherwise specified
:

lnflation:

3.2Oo/o

Salary increases:
lnflation

Seniority/Merit

lnwstment rate of return:
Healthcare cost trend rates

3.2Oo/o
O.2o/o - 5.60/o

3.44o/o

6.100/o Íor 2018 and 2019, increasing to
6.400/o lor 202O.
4.OO"/o ultimate rate

Mortality rates are the same as those used in the December 2O14 Wisconsin Retirement System's annual
report. The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31 ,2018 valuation were based on the "Wisconsin
Retirement System 2012 - 2014 Experience Study".
The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was valued at 3.0%. A blend of expected
earnings on County funds and the current yield for 20 year tax-exempt AA Municipal bond rate or higher as of
the measurement date was used for all years of benefit payments.

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.44o/o. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that County contributions will be made at rates equal to
the actuarially determined contribution rates.
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Changes in the OPEB Liahility
lncrease
(Decrease)

-Tõiãi-õFEB-Liability
ï 2,474,279

Balance at December 31, 2017
Changes for the year:
Service cost
lnterest
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs
Benefit payments
Net changes
Balance at December 31, 2018

219,U3
1

00,186

49,423
(87,226)
281,726
2,756,005

$

Sensitivity of the OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the OPEB liability
of the County, as well as what the County's OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.44o/o) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.44o/o) than the current rate:

to
Rate
(2.44o/o)

Decrease
Discount

1olo

OPEB liability

$

2,900,285

Current
Rate
ß.44o/o)

1% lncrease to
Discount Rate

Discount

$

2,756,005

$

G.44o/o\

2,610,559

Sensitivity of the OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents
the OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County's OPEB liability would be if it were calculated
using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the
current healthcare cost trend rates:
Current Healthcare
Cost Trend Rates

17o Decrease

OPEB liability

ç

2,434,740

$

1olo

2,756,005

$

lncrease
3,134,181

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources Related to
OPEB
For the year ended December 31,2018, the County recognized OPEB expense of $368,952. At
December 31,2018, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:
Deferred Outflows

Deferred lnflows

of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan in\,estments
District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

$

Total

$
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$

42,726

20,588

115,437

158,163

$

20,588
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I

$1 15,437 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from County contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the year ended
December 31 , 2018, and reported in the year ended December 31 , 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in other
postemployment benefits expense as follows:

The

Year Ended
December 31,
2019
2020

$

2021
2022

2023
Thereafter
Total

$

Expense
2,870
2,870
2,870
2,870
2,870
7,788
22,138

Payable to the OPEB PIan
At December 31,2018, the County reported no amount payable for contributions to the Plan required for the
year ended December 31,2018.
Plan Financial Report
The County has not established a separate, irrevocable trust to fund the annual OPEB cost and does not
issue separate plan statements.

2.

Local Retiree Life lnsurance Fund
Plan DescriptÍon
The LRLIF is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. LRLIF benefits and other plan
provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The Wisconsin Department of Employee
Trust Funds (ETF) and the Group lnsurance Board have statutory authority for program administration and
oversight. The plan provides postemployment life insurance benefits for all eligible employees.
OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Positon
ETF issues a standalone Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), which can be found at
http:/ietf .wi. gov/ou bl ications/cafr. htm.

Benefits Provided
The LRLIF plan provides fully paid up life insurance benefits for postage 64 retired employees and pre-65
retirees who pay for their coverage.

Contributìons
The Group lnsurance Board approves contribution rates annually, based on recommendations from the
insurance carrier. Recommended rates are based on an annual valuation, taking into consideration an
estimate of the present value of future benefits and the present value of future contributions. A portion of
employer contributions made during a member's working lifetime funds a post-retirement benefit.
Employers are required to pay the following contributions based on employee contributions for active
members to provide them with Basic Coverage after age 65. There are no employer contributions required for
pre-age 65 annuitant coverage. lf a member retires prior to age 65, they must continue paying the employee
premiums until age 65 in order to be eligible for the benefit after age 65.

Contribution rates as of December

Type

Corerage
Post-retirement
co\erage
50%
25% Post-retirement co\'erage

31 , 2018 are:

Employer Contribution
40% of employee contribution
20% of employee contribution
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Employee contributions are based upon nine age bands through age 69 and an additional eight age bands for
those age 70 and over. Participating employees must pay monthly contribution rates per $1,000 of coverage
until the age of 65 (age 70 if active). The employee contribution rates in effect for the year ended
December 31,2017 are listed below:
Life lnsurance
mployee Contribution Rates
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
Basic
Attained Age
E

Under 30

$0.05

30-34
35-39
40-44
45-45
50-54
55-59
60-64
65-69

0.06
0.07
0.08
0.12
0.22
0.39
0.49

0.57

During the year ending December 31,2018, the LRLIF recognized $5,369 in contributions from the employer.

OPEB LiabilÍtÍes, OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB
At December 31,2018, the County reported a liability (asset) of $823,671 for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability (asset). The net OPEB liability (asset) was measured as of December 31,2017, and the total
OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
December 31,2016 rolled forward to December 31 ,2017. No material changes in assumptions or benefits
terms occurred between the actuarial valuation date and the measurement date. The County's proportion of
the net OPEB liability (asset) was based on the County's share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to
the contributions of all participating employers. At December 3l ,2017, the County's proportion was
0.27377400%, which was an increase of 0.02392600% from its proportion measured as of December 31,

2016.

'

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the County recognized OPEB expense of $94,873.
At December 31, 2018, the Utilities reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Difierences between expected and actual experience
Net difierences between projected and actual
eamings on OPEB plan inrcstments
Changes in assumptions
Changes in proportion and difierences between
employer contributions and proportionate share

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred lnflows
of Resources

$

$

11,605

$

11,605

9,484
79,593

75

of contributions

Total
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
Year Ended
December 31,
2019
2020

Expense
$

2021
2022

18,126
27,733

2023
Thereafter
Total

20,497
20,497
20,497
20,497

$

127,847

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability in the January 1,2017 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:
January 1,2017
December 31,2017
Entry age normal

Actuarial wluation date:
Measurement date of net OPEB liability (asset):
Actuarial cost method:
2Oyear tax-exempt municipal bond yield:
Long-term expected rate of return:
Discount rate:
Salary increases:

3.44o/o

5.00%
3.63%

lnflation

3.20Yo
0.2o/o - 5.60/o

Seniority/Merit
Mortality:

Wisconsin 2012 Mortality Table

Long-term expected return on plan assets. The long-term expected rate of return is determined by adding
expected inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and correlation.
lnvestments for the LRLIF are held with Securian, the insurance carrier. lnterest is calculated and credited to
the LRLIF based on the rate of return for a segment of the insurance carriers' general fund, specifically 10year A- Bonds (as a proxy, and not tied to any specific investments). The overall aggregate interest rate is
calculated using a tiered approach based on the year the funds were originally invested and the rate of return
for that year. lnvestment interest is credited based on the aggregate rate of return and assets are not adjusted
to fair market value. Furthermore, the insurance carrier guarantees the principal amounts of the reserves,
including all interest previously credited thereto.
Long-term
Asset Class
U.S.
U.S.
U.S.
U.S.

Government Bonds
Credit Bonds
Long Credit Bonds
Mortgages

Target
Allocation

lndex
Barclays
Barclays
Barclays
Barclays

Expected Geometric
Real Rate of Return %

Government

1Yo

1.13%

Credit
Long Credit
MBS

65%

2.61Yo

3Yo

3.08%

31o/o

2.19%

lnflation

230%

Long-term expected rate of return

5.00%
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Single discount rate. A single discount rate of 3.630/o was used to measure the total OPEB liability. Ïhe
Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be insufficient to make all projected future benefit payments of
current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the Total OPEB Liability is
equal to the single equivalent rate that results in the same actuarial present value as the long{erm expected
rate of return applied to benefit payments, to the extent that the plan's fiduciary net position is projected to be
sufficient to make projected benefit payments, and the municipal bond rate applied to benefit payment to the
extent that the plan's fiduciary net position is projected to be insufficient.

Sensitivity of the County's proportionate share of net OPEB liability (asset) to changes in the discount
rate. The following presents the County's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) calculated
using the discount rate of 3.630/o, as well as what the County's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability
(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I -percentage-point lower (2.63%) or 1percentage-point higher (4.63%) than the current rate:

County' proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability (asset)

to

Discount Rate

Current
Discount Rate

(2.63Vo1

(3.63"/0)

1% Decrease

$

1,164,160

$

823,671

1% Increase

to

Discount Rate
(4.63o/o)

$

562,381

OPEB plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position is
available in separately issued financial statements available at http://etf.wi.gov/oublications/cafr.htm.

I.

FUND EQUITY

Nonspendable Fund Balance
ln the fund financial statements, portions of the governmental fund balances are amounts that cannot be spent
because they are either 1) not in spendable form or 2) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. At
December 31,2018, nonspendable fund balance was as follows:
General Fund
Nonspendable
Delinquent property taxes
Adwnces to other funds

lnwntories
Prepaid items
lnsurance capital deposits
Total Nonspendable Fund Balance

$

5s3,290
2,099,558
19,988

223,862

$
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Restricted Fund Balance
ln the fund financial statements, portions of governmental fund balances are not available for appropriation or are
legally restricted for use for a specific purpose. At December 31,2018, restricted fund balance was as follows:
Special Revenue Funds
Restricted for
Economic development loans

$

Schoolfor handicapped
Jail maintenance

1,163,793
845,550

70,275
1 000
2,080,618

Dog licenses

TotalSpecial Revenue Funds Restricted Fund Balance
Debt Service Fund
Restricted for
Debt service

1

Total Restricted Fund Balance

5,1 61

-$--2-095J29-

Gommitted Fund Balance
ln the fund financial statements, portions of government fund balances are committed by County Board action. At
December 31, 2018, governmental fund balance was committed as follows:
General Fund
Committed for subsequent years' expenditures
Self insurance retention
Finance
lnformation services
County board

$

Personnel outlays
Veterans
Parks
Maintenance

300,000
1,381,832
125,934
76,308
11,214

4,581
26,531

4,984
14,165
1,945,549

Sherifi enforcement
Total General Fund Committed Fund Balance

Special Rercnue Funds
Committed for
County roads & bridges
Capital projects

1,387,650
1 , 169,076
35 795

Land records

Total Special Rerenue Funds Committed Fund Balance

2,592,521

$

Total Committed Fund Balance
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Minimum General Fund Balance Policy
The County has also adopted a minimum fund balance policy of 15o/o of current year expenditures for the
governmentalfunds except debt service and capital projects. The minimum fund balance is maintained for cash
flow and working capital purposes. The minimum fund balance amount is calculated as follows:
2018 Gowmmental Fund Expenditures

$

Less:
Debt service fund expenditures
Capital projects fund expenditures

Subtotal
Minimum Fund Balance %
Minimum Fund Balance Amount

41,557,686

(2,773,231)
(376,351)
38,408,104
(x) 1s%

-$--T76T716-

The County is in compliance with the minimum fund balance policy
Net Position
The County reports restricted net position at December 31, 20lB as follows
Gorcmmental activities
Restricted for
Economic development loans
School for handicapped
Jail maintenance
Dog licenses
Pension benefits
Total govemmental activities restricted net position

$

reW

2,727,321

Business-type activities
Restricted for
Pension benefits
Total restricted net position

1,611,168
845,550
70,275
1,000

234,233

$

5,489,547

NOTE 4: OTHER INFORMATION

A. RISK MANAGEMENT
The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the government carries commercial insurance. The County
completes an annual review of its insurance coverage to ensure adequate coverage. A description of the County's
risk management programs is presented below:

Property and Liability lnsurance
The County is a member of the Wisconsin County Mutual insurance Corporation (WCMIC). WCMIC was created
by several governmental units within the State of Wisconsin to provide general, auto and other liability insurance
services to its members. The County pays premiums to WCMIC for its liability insurance coverage. The actuary
for WCMIC determines charges to its members for the expected losses and loss adjustment expenses on which
premiums are based. Premium charges for WCMIC are recorded as expenditures or expenses in various funds of
the County. The County's self-insured retention limit was $25,000 for each occurrence for 2018, with a maximum
limit of $150,000 annually. A separate financial report is issued annually by WCMIC.
The County also purchases commercial insurance policies for various property and other liability risks. Payments
of premiums for these policies are also recorded as expenditures or expenses in various funds of the County.
Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage for each of the past three years. There have also been no
significant changes in insurance coverage from the prior year.
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B. WORKERS COMPENSATION
The County has established a worker's compensation program to finance workers compensation awards for
County employees. The program is funded by charges to County departments. The program is supplemented by
stop loss protection, which limits the County's annual liability to $300,000 per specific claim. Expenses consist of
payments for claims, stop loss insurance premiums and administrative costs. A claims liability was reported in the
generalfund at December 31,2018, based on the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a
liability be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that
a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. Changes in the claims liability for 2018 and 2017 follow:

Liability

January

2017

2018

$

1

430,281
375,754

Cunent Year
Claims and
Changes in
Estimates
$

(56,33e)
22,697

$

Claims

Liability

Payments

December 31

(1,812) $
53,763

37s,7s4
344,688

For the County's self-insured risk management areas, there have been no significant reductions in insurance
coverage in comparison to the prior year. Also, the amount of insurance settlements for each of the County's selfinsured risk management areas has not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

C. CONTINGENCIES
The County has identified the following items as potential liabilities not recorded on the basic financial statements:

1.

The County participates in a number of federal and state assisted grant agreements. These programs are
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. An audit under Federal Uniform
Guidance and the State Audit Guidelines has been conducted but final acceptance is still pending.
Accordingly, the County's compliance with applicable grant requirements will be established at some future
date. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at
this time although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

2.

From time to time, the County is party to other pending claims and legal proceedings. Although the outcome
of such matters cannot be forecast with certainty, it is the opinion of management and the Corporation
Counsel that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material adverse effect
on the County's financial position or results of operations.

D. UPCOMING ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
ln January 2017,hhe GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The Statement establishes criteria for
identifying fiduciary activities and addresses financial reporting for these activities. This statement is effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15,2018. The County is currently evaluating the impact this standard will
have on the financial statements when adopted.
ln June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The Statement establishes a single model for lease
accounting based on the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. This
statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The County is currently evaluating
the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted.

60

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Changes in OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Last l0 FiscalYears *

2018

2017

TotalOPEB liability
Service cost

$

lnterest
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning

218,172

$

87,899

219,343
100,186

(28,242)
(94,257\

49,423

(87,226)
281,726
2,474,279

183,572
2,290,707

Total OPEB liability - ending

g

Covered-em ployee payroll

$ 14,053,383

$ 14,614,753

17.610/o

18.86%

County's total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll

" The amounts presented

for each fiscal year were determined as of the
year
current fiscal
end. Amounts for prior years were not available.

See notes to required supplementary information

6l

2,474,279

$

2,756,005

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Wisconsin Retirement System
Last 10 FiscalYears

Proportion of
Plan
Year Ending

the Net Pension
Liability (Asset)

12131114
12131115
12131116

Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability (Asset)

Covered Payroll

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position as a
Percentage of the
Total Pension
Liability (Asset)

0.09459513% $

(2,323,515)

$ 12,531 ,666

18.54%

102.74%

0.09618635%

I ,563,010
803,r 45
(2,961,554)

13,435,242
13,442,417
14,053,383

11.63Yo

98.20o/o

0.09744080%

12t31117

Covered
Payroll

Proportionate
Share of the Net
Pension Liability
(Asset) as a
Percentage of

0.09974523o/o

5.97%

99j2%

21.07o/o

102.93%

Covered

Contributions
as a Percentage
of Covered

Payroll

Payroll

Schedule of Contributions
Wisconsin Retirement System
Last 10 Fiscal Years

Contributions in
Contractually
Required
Contributions

Fiscal
Year Ending
12131115
12131116
12131117
12131118

$

962,845
935,915
1,027,293
1,053,342

Relation to the
Contractually
Required
Contributions
$

962,845

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)
$

935,915

1,027,293
1,053,342

62

g

13,435,242
13,442,417
14,053,383
14,614,753

7j7%
6.96%
7.31o/o

7.21%

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset)
Local Retiree Life lnsurance Fund
Last 10 FiscalYears

Plan

Year Ending

Proportion of
the Net OPEB
Liability (Asset)

12131117

0.273774000/o

Proportionate
Share of the Net
OPEB Liability

Proportionate
Share of the
Net OPEB
Liability (Asset)

$

BZ3,6Z1

Covered
Payroll

$

(Asset) as a
Percentage of
Covered Payroll
5.86%

14,053,383

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position as a
Percentage of the

TotalOPEB
Liability (Asset)
44.81o/o

Schedule of Contributions
W isconsin Retirement System

Last 10 Fiscal Years

Contractually
Required
Contributions

Fiscal

Year Ending

12t31t18

$

Contributions in
Relation to the
Contractually
Required
Contributions

5,369 $

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)

5,369 $

Covered
Payroll

$

63

14,614,753

Contributions
as a Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
0.04o/o

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31,2018

A. WISCONS¡N RETIREMENT SYSTEM
There were no changes of benefit terms for any participating employer in the WRS.

The County is required to present the last ten fiscal years of data; however accounting standards allow the
presentation of as many years as are available until ten fiscal years are presented.

B. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT

BENEFITS
implemented
GASB
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
The County early
Benefits Other Than Pensions, for its single-employer defined benefit postemployment health plan. ln the current
year, the Local Retiree Life lnsurance Fund (LRIF), a multiple-employer defined benefit other postemployment
benefit (OPEB) plan, completed an actuarial study under GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit P/an, which identified a net OPEB liability for the Plan. The County is required to present
the last ten fiscal years of data; however accounting standards allow the presentation of as many years as are
available until ten fiscal years are presented.
Sì ng le-em ployer Defi ned Postem ployment Benefit Pl an
There were no changes in benefit terms. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in
paragraph 4 of Statement 75.

Local Retiree Life lnsurance Fund (LRLIF)
There were no changes of benefit terms or assumptions for any participating employer in LRLIF. The amounts
reported for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that occurred within the fiscal year.
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CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

December 31,2018

a

UE

School
Home
Nursinq

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables
Property taxes levied for
subsequent year
Accounts
Loans
Total assets

$

461,787

for
Handicapped

Jail
Maintenance

$

$

845,550

70,275

Land

Records

$

84,741

57,807
144

760,193
8,267

$

470.054

$

$

211,842

$

1.605.743

s

70

275

s

42692

$

49,090

Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

$

258,212

Unearned donations
Total liabilities

470,054

49,090

Deferred inflows of resources:
Property taxes levied for subsequent year
Loans receivable
Total Deferred inflows of resources

760,r 93

57,807

760,193

57,807

Fund balances:
Restricted for:

Schoolfor handicapped

845,550
70,275

Jail maintenance
Dog licenses
Economic development loans
Committed for:
Land records
Totalfund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
resources and fund balances

35 795

70,275

845,550

$

470.054

65

$

1.605.743

s

70

275

35,795

s

1

42 652

TotalNonmajor

Economic
Dog
Licenses

Development
Loans

$

1,163,793

$

17,23O

Governmental Funds
2018
$

818,000
8,815

404

s

447,375

1.611.168

$

2,643,376

447,375

s

17

s

3 917 566

$

16,634

$

277,566
258,212
535.778

16,634

818,000

447,375
447,375

447.375
1.265.375

1,163,793

845,550
70,275
1,000
1,163,793

1,000

35.795

r,000

1,163,793

s

1.61

1.168

$

17

2.116.413

s

39 17

s66

66

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances For the Year Ended December 31,2018

S

al Revenue

School
Home
Nursino

Revenues
Taxes

$

for
Handicaooed

Jail
Maintenance

$

$

907,464

Land

Records
$

1,328,939

lntergovernmental
Regulation and compliance
Public charges for services
Total revenues

55,656
102,408

21,297

2,604,499

2,604,499

21,297

2,236,403

50,405
208,469

Expenditures
2,417,981

Health and social services
Education and recreation
Conservation and development
Total expenditures

2,028,262

2,417,981

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

21,297

208,141

186,518

Other financing uses
Transfers out

238.318
238,318

2,028,262

(29,849)

(15,251\

(186,518)

Net change in fund balances

208,141

6,046

(29,849)

Fund balances - beginning

637,409

64.229

65.644

Fund balances - ending

$

$

67

845,550

$

70,275

$

35,795

Economic
Development
Loans

Dog
Licenses

2018
$

$

$

Total
Nonmajor
Governmental Funds

963,1 20

1,574,319

142,972

21,297

21.428
164.400

3,583
3,583

18,242
18,242

2.694.574

18,242

2,436,223
2,028,262

5.253.310

241.901
4,706,386

18,242

546,924

160,817

(201.769)
345,155

160,817

s

I

.163.793

1.771.258

1,000

1.002,976
$

1

s

2 116 413

6B

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONS¡N
Home Nursing
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

Revenues
Public charges for services

$

1,839,2s4

Actual
Amounts

Final

Original
Budqet

Budset

$

2,604,499

s

2.604.499

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Neoative)
$

Expenditures
Current:
Health and social services

1,839,254

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other financing uses
Transfers out

2,417,981

2.417.981

186,518

186,518

(186,518)

í86,518)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

$

$

69

$

$

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN

School for Handicapped
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

Final
Budqet

Original
Budqet

Revenues
Taxes

$

907,464

2,025,645

907,464
1.120,798
2,028,262

2,025,645

2,028,262

$

1,118,181

lntergovernmental
Total revenues

Expenditures
Education and recreation

Actual

Amounts

$

$

1.328.939

208.141
208,141

2.236.403

2.028.262
208,141

208,141

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

90z,¿6+

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Nesative)

$

637.409

70

637,409

637,409

637,409

$

637.409

s

84s

550

s

208.141

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Jail Maintenance
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

Original
Budqet

Revenues
Regulation and compliance

$

Other financing uses
Transfers out
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

$

20,000

Actual
Amounts

Final

Budqet

$

20,000

$

21,291

(15,800)

(15,800)

(15,251)

4,200

4,200

6,046

64,229

64,229

64.229

68,429

71

$

68,429

$

tO,ZtS

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Neqative)

$

1,297

549

1,846

$

1,846

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Land Records
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

Final
Budqet

Original
Budqet

Revenues
Taxes

$

55,656

$

55,656

$

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive

Amounts

lNeoative)

55,656

$

98,360
54,640
208,656

98,360
54,640
208,656

102,408
50,405
208,469

(4,235)
(187)

Current:
Conservation and development

252,775

262,075

238,318

23,757

Net change in fund balance

(44,119)

(53,419)

(29,849)

23,570

65,644

65,644

65.644

lntergovernmental
Public charges for services
Total revenues

4,O48

Expenditures

Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

s

21,525

72

$

12,225

$

gS,ZgS

$

23,570

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Economic Development Loans - Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

Original
Budqet

Final
Budqet

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Neoative)

Revenues
lntergovernmental
Public charges for services
Total revenues

$

121

,396

$

121,396

$

142,972

$

21,576

12.078

12.O78

21,428

133.474

133.474

164,400

9,350
30,926

133.474

133.474

3,583

129,891

160,817

160,817

Expenditures
Conservation and development
Net change in fund balance

1,002,976 1,002,976

Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

$

1,002,976

73

s

1,002.976

$

1,002,976

1,163,7e3

$

rOO,A1z

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Dog Licenses
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
FortheYear Ended December 31,2018

Original
Budoet

Revenues
Public charges for services

$

Expenditures

19,429

$

Final

Actual

Budqet

Amounts

19,429

g

19,429 19,429

Health and social services

18,242

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Neoative)

$

18,242

1,187

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

1,000

$

74

1,000

1,000

$

1,000

1,000

$

1,000

(1,187)

$

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Debt Service
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

Original
Budoet

Revenues
Taxes

$

2,528,136

$

Final

Actual

Budqet

Amounts

2,528,136

$

2,528,136

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Neoative)
$

Expenditures
Debt service:
Principal retirement
lnterest and other charges
lssuance expense
Total expenditures

2,390,000
326,1 95

2,390,000
326, r 95
57 036
2
231

716 195
(r

Deficiency of revenues under expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Premium on long term debt issued
Transfer in
Total Other Financing Sources

2,390,000
326,1 95
57 036
773
1

88,059) (245,095)
57,036
188,059
245,095

188,059
188,059

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

14,122

s

14,122

75

14,122

$

14.122

(245,095)

573

57,609
188,525

466

246,134

1,039

0 39

1,039

14.122

$

15,161

$

1,039

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
County Sales Tax - Gapital Projects Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Final
Budoet

Original
Budoet

Revenues
Taxes

$

1,761,000

$

1,961,000

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive

Amounts

lNeoative)

$

2,615,609

$

654,609

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Education and recreation
Total Expenditures

40,000
330,000
1,376,000
15,000

40,000
330,000
1,376,000
215,000

14,400

25,600
198,639

131 ,361

1,761,000 1 ,961,000

1,300,772

75,228

1,446,533

215,000
514,467

1,169,076

Net change in fund balance

1,169,076

Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

$

$

76

$

1,169,076

$

1,r69,076

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Capital Projects
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

Original
Budoet

Revenues
lnterest

Expenditures
General government

527,767
1,020,225

Public safety
Public works
Education and recreation
Total expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Long term debt issued
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

$

491,201

376,351

,047,082) (369,764)

3,249,915

2,945,000
208,515
(466)

1,612,700

4,862,615 3,153,049

Net change in fund balance

(2,783,285)

Fund balance - beginning

s

(2783 285)

77

S

(6,184,467)

2,783,285

(2,783,285\

(2,783,285\

l8 967 752

$

O,SAz

779,278

41,882

1,551,500

11,047,082
(11

6,s87
36,566
240,947
56,956

7,947,590

Deficiency of revenues under expenditures

Fund balance - ending

$

$

$

Actual
Amounts

Final

Budqet

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Neqative)

7,890,634
1 ,509,618
10,670,731

10,677,318

(304,915)
(1,404,185)
(466)
(1,709,566)
8,967,752

$

8.967.752

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Source
December 31,2018

2018

Governmental funds capital assets:

$

Land

Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructure
Total governmental funds capital assets

$

lnvestments in governmental funds capital assets by source:
Generalfund
Special revenue funds
Total governmental funds capital assets

7B

3,536,318
5,425,335
14,647,312
8,633,645
83,103,974
I 15,346,584

g

32,197,715

$

83,148,869
1 r 5,346,584

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Function and Activity
December 31,2018

Machinery
Land

Land
lmprovements

and

Buildinqs

Equipment

lnfrastructure

Total

General government:
Circuit court
County buildings
County clerk
lnformation services
Register of deeds
Total general government

$

$

$

174,416 1,048,845

$

12,245,500

14,545

$

14,545
15,099,182

$

1,127,605

502,8'16

5,416

5,416

2,061,839
107,750

2,061,839

174,416 1,048,845 12,245,500 2,692,366

107 750

1,127 ,605

17,288.732

Public safety:
Sheriff
Total public safety

222.424

4,904,145

222,424

4,904j45

66,319
66,319

5,192,888
5,192,888

Public works:
County roads and bridges

1

,1 51

81,671,661

,000

82,822,661

Health and social serv¡ces:
Health & human services

300,082

300,082

Education and recreation:
Calumet county parks system

2,210,902 4,376,490 2,179,388 619,077

238,389

9,624,246

Conservation and development
Land and water conservation
Planning
Total conservation and
development
Total governmental funds
capital assets

$ 3.536.318 $

5.42 5,335

79

$

14,647,312

$

52,066
65,909

52,066
65,909

117,975

117,975

8,633,645 $ 83,103.974

$

115.346.584

CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Footnote Data
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Beginning
Balance

lncreases

Ending
Balance

Decreases

Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure
Subtotals

$

3,536,318 $
1.493.172
5.029.490

$

$

915.483
915.483

1.363.809

1.363,809

3,536,318

1.044.846
4.581.164

5,425,335
5,425,335
14,032,891 614,421
14,647,312
10,241,199 1,605,718 3,213,272 8,633,645
81,713,210 1,390,764
83,103,974
111,412,635 3,610,903 3,213,272 111,810,266

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land lmprovements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure
Subtotals

(3,555,004)
(6,982,725)
(5,160,599)

(3,747,167)

(1e2,163)

(286,374)
(731,208)

189

71
1

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

(7,269,099)
(4,413,0e1)
58
I

(1,478,716)

40.524.826

478 716

1.734.556

48 5. 560

38.304.710

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Less related long-term debt outstanding

16,759,011

Net investment in capital assets

$

26,126,863

$

zo,t gt

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$

26,1e1

$

26,191

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Subtotals

26,191

8,172,425 17,360
6,747,189 566,243
14,919,614 583,603

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Subtotals

(436,243)
1

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net

$

(170,419)

(606,662)

4,373,

534

10,411,837

$

8,189,785
122,983 7,190,449
122,983 15,380,234

10,438,028

19,279

$

19,279

$

31,281
31,281

10,399,835

$

10,426,026

10,426,026

Less related long-term debt outstanding
Net investment in capital assets
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ADDITIONAL INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
FOR BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Q

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

Independent auditors' report on internal control over financial report¡ng and on
compl¡ance and other matters based on an audit of financial statements
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
To the County Board
Calumet County, Wisconsin

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sfandards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Calumet County, Wisconsin (the "County") as of and for the year
ended December 31 ,2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon which includes an emphasis of matter paragraph as
indicated on page 2 dated July 24,2019.
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the County's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
County's internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the County's financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Sfandards.

o

A member of

Nexia
Internat¡onal

8l

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards in
considering the County's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Lt9
GliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Green Bay, Wisconsin
July 24,2019
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FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

ù

Clifto¡La¡sonAllan LLP
CLAæonect.com

lndependent auditors' report on compl¡ance for each major and federal and state
program and on internal control over compliance; and report on the schedule of
expend¡tures of federal awards and the schedule of expenditures of state awards
required by the Uniform Guidance and the Sfafe Single Audit Guidelines
To the County Board
Calumet County, Wisconsin

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM
We have audited Calumet County, Wisconsin's ("the County's") compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement and the State Single Audit
Guidelines issued by the Wisconsin Department of Administration that could have a direct and material effect on each of
the County's major federal and state programs for the year ended December 31,2018. The County's major federal and
state programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of federal and state statutes, regulations, and the
terms and conditions of its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.
AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County's major federal and state programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 2OO, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and the Sfafe Srng/e Audit Guidelines
issued by the Wisconsin Department of Administration. Those standards, Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit
Guidelines require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and state
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County's compliance.
OPINION ON EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM
ln our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the year ended

December 31,2018.

o

A member of
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lnternational
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. ln planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered the County's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal or state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit
Guidelines, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, we did identify a certain deficiency in internal control over compliance, as described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2018-001 that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.

The County's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The County's response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and the
Sfafe Srng/e Audit Guidelines. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

A/r,grr'*lULLr
GliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Green Bay, Wisconsin
July 24,2019
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Calumet County, Wisconsin
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
?l t^4
FôF¡ THtr YtrAR FNDFD

ê"âhtô" Âñañ.vrFe.lêrâl Prôdmm Titlê
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Special Supplêmental Nutrition Program for Women, lnfants, and Children
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, lnfants, and Children
Total Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, lnfants, and Children
SNAP Cluster
State Administrat¡ve Match¡ng Grants for Food Stamp Program
State Admin¡strative Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program
State Administrative Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program
Total SNAP Cluster

CFDA

Pas-s-Through

Number

Aoencv

10.557
't0.557

WI DHS
WI DHS

10.561

Marquette County
Marquette County
Marquette County

'10.56'1

10.561

(Accrued)
Defened

Pass-Through
Entity
ldentifying

154710
154760

1l1l'18

$

U.S. DEPARÎMENT OF JUSTICE
Bulletproof Vest Grant PrcgEm
CEASE

11

.549

16.607
16,UNK

(24,814)

$ 136,065 $ 34,615 $ 145,866

(9,133)
(33,947)

61

277

(732)

284

(44,O75)
(44,807)

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
State and Local lmplementâtion Grant Program

Total
Subrcc¡p¡ent
Revenue
(Refundedl 1213'll'18 Expenditures Pavment

Revenue

Nr¡ñhêr

Accrued
(Deferred)

Cash

Reæived

14,735
150,800

2,941
37,556

704

264

732

'160,789
162,225

$

8,543

154,409

_____:_

968

M,O24
M,2A8

160,738 ___________=
161,706 _-_______-_-:

(78,7541 313,02s

81,844

316,1',15

(44,065) 97,787
_
(44,005) 97,787

45,612
5,ooo
50,612

',104,335 _________:_

-_______-_

1,592 _______-:

Wl DOJ
Not available
Not ava¡lable

D¡rect Progmm

WI DOJ

Total U.S. Department of Justice
ENVIRONMENTAL PROÌECTION AGENCY
Great Lakes Program
Great Lakes Program

66.469
66_469

Fox Wolf Watershed All¡ance, lnc.
Great Lakes Restoration ln¡t¡ative

GL 00E01906
8009- t 0N-01

1

Total Environmental Protection Agency
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Special Education - Grânts for lnfants and Families

84.18't

Wl DHS

550

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Special Programs for the Aging Title lll, Part D Disease Prevention and
Health Promotion Seruices

93.043

GWAAR

560510

Ag¡ng Cluster
Special Programs for the Aging T¡tle lll, Part B Grants for Supportive Seru¡ces
and Senior Centers

93.044

GWAAR

560340

93.045
93.045

GWAAR
GWAAR

560350
560360

93.053

GWAAR

560422

93.052

GWAAR

93.069
93.069

WI DHS
WI DHS

Special Programs for the Ag¡ng T¡tle lll, Part C Nutrition Seruices
Spec¡al Prcgrams for the Aging T¡tle lll, Part C Nutrition Serviæs
Total Spec¡al Programs for the Aging Title lll, Part C Nutrition Seruices
Nutrit¡on Services lncent¡ve Progmm
Total Ag¡ng Cluster

Nat¡onal Fam¡ly Careg¡ver Support, Title lll, Part E
Public Hælth Emerqency Preparedness
Public Health Emergency Preparedness
Total Publ¡c Health Emergency Preparedness

_

(7,822\
(1

1,007)

9,414

31,969

13,921

1,007)

123,876

13,921

'155050

85

42,371

2,703

_

34,883

126,790 _________=
16,437

16,437
155015

5,ooo

46,054

46,054

(a

99,335

2,850

-----------2,850
___________: 45,074
---------L

45,221

2'703 -------:-

47,924 ________:_

Calumet County, Wisconsin
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
a1 t^1e
TôP TlJtr VtrÂP trNNtrTì

Pass-Through
Aqency

CFDA

Ghntôr Adêncv/Federal Præram Title

Number

Pass-Through
Ent¡ty
ldentifying
Number

U.S. DEPARTIIIENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES (Gontinued)
Med¡care Enrollment Assistance Program

93.071

WI DHS

560620

State Health Assistance Program

93.324

WI DHS

560432

Capacity Building Ass¡stance to Strengthen Public Health lmmunization lnfrastructure
and Performance financed in part by the Prevenlion ând Public Heâlth Fund (PPHF)

93.539

WI DHS

155020

Promoting Safe and Stablê Fam¡l¡es

93.556

WI DCF

3306

TANF Cluster
Temporary Assistance for Needy Famil¡es
Temporary Ass¡stance for Needy Famil¡es
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
TotalTANF Cluster

93.558
93.558
93.558

WI DHS
WI DCF
WI DCF

56'l
3377
3380

7477

93.563
93.563
93.563
93.563

WI
WI
WI
WI

Low lncome Home Energy Assistanæ
Low lncome Home Energy Assistance
Total Low lncome Home Energy Ass¡stance

93.568
93.568

WI DOA
WI DOA

AO1599973.8
WHEAP,I9.8

93.596
93.596

WI DCF
WI DCF

83r

93.575
93.575
93.575

WI DCF
WI DCF
WI DCF

831

840

93.645
93.645
93.645

WI DCF
WI DCF
WI DCF

341

Foster Care (Title lV-E)
Foster Care (Title lV-E)
Foster Care (Title lV-E)
Total Foster Care (Title lV-E)

93.658
93.658
93.658

WI DCF
WI DCF

341

WI DCF

3561
3681

Social Seruices Block Grant
Children's Health lnsurance Program
Children's Heâlth lnsurance Program
Total Children's Health lnsuEnce Program

93.ô67
93.767
93.767

WI DHS

561

Marquette County
Marquette County

277
2A4

CCDF Cluster
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care and Development Fund
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care and Development Fund
Total CCDF Cluster
Ch¡ld Care and Development Block Grant

Child Care and Development Block Grant
Child Care and Development Block Grant
Total Child Carê and Development Block Grant
Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare
Stèphanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare
stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare
Total Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child

Services Program
Seruices ProgEm
Seruices Program
Welfare Seruices Program

DCF
DCF
DCF
DCF

7482
7506
7616

840

468

468

(2,626)

2,626

7,773

7.773

(7,137)

42,827

39,259

3,569

56,230

56,230
19,076
685

(19,076)
(685)
(1

Enforcement (Title lV-D)
Enforcement (Title lV-D)
Enforcement (Title lV-D)
Enforcement (Title lV-D)
Support Enforcement (T¡lle lV-D)

Child Support
Child Support
Child Support
Child Support
Total Ch¡ld

(Accrued)
Accrued
(Deferred)
Cash
Deferred
Subrecipient
Total
Revenue Received Revenue
1t1118 (Refunded) '1213'll'18 Expend¡tures Pavment

_-______-_-56,230

9,761 )

(162,328)
366
(128)

475,376
-s,991

(376)
(2,036)
(2,412\

141,893
(e16)
63

454,941
(3,028)
465

I,790

353

629

2,'127

2,143
2,756

(2,478)
530

376
2,036

2,412

a52

3

3561
3681

86

2,469

2,469

16,209
1,294
't9,972

16,209
1,294
19,972

4,426

4,426

3

'181,909

(e6)

(5,842\
(s,938)

14,522
200,857

181,909
14,522
200,857

'105,015

105,015

9ô

20,873
20,969

5,670
5,670

20,701
20,70'l

Calumet County, Wisconsin
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
31 )O17
FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Pass-Through
Aoencv

CFDA

ê"ñ+^r Ââãñ-r,rFâdô".| Þr â.âñ

T¡tlô

u.s. DEPARTMENT oF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERvlcEs (continued)
Grants to States for AcGs and Visitat¡on Programs
Preventive Health and Health Seruices Block Grant funded solely w¡th
Prevention and Public Health Funds (PPHF)
Preventive Health and Heâlth Services Block Grant funded solely with
Prevention and Public Health Funds (PPHF)
Total Children's Health lnsurance Program
Medicaid Cluster
Medical Assistance Program
Med¡cal Assistance Program
Medical Assistance Program
Medical Assistancê Program
Medical Assistance Program
Medical Assistance Program
Medical Assistance Program
Medical Assistance Program
Mediæl Assistance Program
Medical Assistance Program
Medical Assistance Program
Medicâl Ass¡stance Program
Total Mediæid Cluster

Number

Pæs-Through
Ent¡ty
ldent¡fying
Number

Accrued
(Defe¡red)

Revenue

Received

Revenue

155032

-

93.758

WI DHS

155800

-17-'17

93.758

WI DHS

159200

WI DHS

560058

WI DHS
WI DHS

50006

93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778

WI DHS
WI DHS
WI DHS
WI DHS
Marquette County
Marquette County
Marquette County
WI DHS
WI DHS

1

(22,e't3)
(12,088)

560081

560087

(28,87s)
(228,349)

560091

(36,1s3)

,

WI DHS
WI DHS

515
569

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse
Block Grânts for Prevent¡on and Treatment of Substanæ Abuse
Total Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

93.959
93.959

WI DHS
WI DHS

570
515

'159320

Wl DHS

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Seruices

97.067

20l''HSW-oF10663

Wl DMA

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

80,891

22,240
1,105
672,101
1 1

(947\
(60,087)

947
208,769
780,022

__________-__: 94,859

(389,452) 2,228,127
(2,577)

(3,100)
(5,677\
(1

1,57e)

9,962

13,420
23,382
50,189
1,221
5',1,4'10

The notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awilds are an integral paft of this schedule'

87

11,064

6,809
'12,312
5,336
20,996
192,766

6,809
70,290
15,488
103,226
636,518
37,210

102,459
592

2U,668

56,083

204,765
780,022
94,859
2,236,028

2,173

397,353
1,471

2,068
3,539
7,718
243
7,961

I 1,796 _-:_
___-j_
(629,655) 3,640,656 583,978

(10,130) 10,496
(10,130) '10,496
_g_lz00.ee6Ì _L1,1_35,570_

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS

519

73,403
1,581

'l

93.994

Subrec¡pient
Pavment

4,419
4,436

182,209

560097
62
277

284

10,545

4,419
4,436

560071

TPA
Unknown

Total

111,18 (Refunded) 12l31na Expend¡tures

Wl DCF

93.958
93.958

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Homeland Security Grant Program

Câsh

93.597

Block Gmnts for Community Mental Health Seruices
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Seruices
Total Block Grants for Commun¡ty Mental Health Seruices

Matemal and Child Health Serviæs Block Grant to the States

(Accrued)
Deferred

_s

17,594
17,594
734.02e_

8,856

12,388 _
21,244 __-_________46,328

1,4æ

47,792

11,796
3,594,979

-___:_
_____:_
-__j_
__--j_

17,960

___________:_

17,960

_-_j_

_$3192É9L

-$--

-

Calumet County, Wisconsin
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS
? t^1 A
FôR THtr YFAR FNDFD
Pass-Through

Entity
crâñtôr Adêncvrstate Prooram T¡tlê
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, TRADE AND CONSUMER PROTECTION
Agriculture Clean Sweep Program
County Staff and Support
LWRM Plan lmplementation Projects

State l.D.
Number

15.04
15.15
115.40

1
1

ldênt¡fying
Number

Pass-Through
Agency

Not Ava¡lable
Not Available
Not Available

Direct Program
D¡rect Program
Direct Program

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
Acqu¡sit¡on Development Rights
Boating Patrol
Boat¡ng Enforcement
W¡ldlife Damage Abatemerìt and Claims
County Conseruation Aids
Nine Key Elemerìts
RæreatiomlA¡ds - Snowmobile Trail and Area Aid
Target Runoff Management
Lake Protection & Classification Grants
Stormwater Management Plannirìg
Lake Protect¡on (Aquaitic lnvasive Species)

255.334
370.T4280
370.573
370.550
370.553
370.563
370.004
370.574 & 370.575
370.602
370.663
370.658
370.678

D¡rect Program

Not Ava¡lable

Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program

Not Available
Not Avãilâble
Not Ava¡lable
Not available
Not available
Not available
Not evaileble

Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
D¡rect
D¡rect
Direct
Direct
Oirect
Direct
Direct

TRC-MA05-0800013
LPT-481-15

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES
FPI Non-Fed
IMAA State Share ACA CY
IMAA FED SHARE ACA CY
IMAA State Share
IMAA Federal Share
APS-Adult Protective Seru¡ces
Children's COP
AÞfle¡mers Family Support
Enhanced lM Funding
Coordinated Services - County
Community Mental Health
Non-Resident 997
B¡rth To Th¡ee ln¡t¡at¡ve
Basic County Allocation
State/County Match
CLTS Waiver GPR
CLTS Grandfather GPR
Comm Disease Ctrl & Prev
Cons Contracts CHHD LD

Rêvenue
12131118

$-$j0,445$$i0,44s$(124,409) 255,536

AEPP-382-13

1,256
3,234
7,095
(8,086)
10,380
(2'250-)
2'250(15,331) 155,174
(1s0,000) 163,606

(22'961-) 43'237-

________________

98,522

Not Available

D¡rect Program

------------:
435.060
435.276
435.277
435.283

435.2U
435.312
435.377
435.381
435.468
435.515
435.516
435.53'l
435.550

435.56r
435.68r
435.871
435.874
435.154720
43s.155800
435.157720

60
276
277
283
284

Marquette County
Marquette Courìty
Marquette Courìty
Marquette Courìty
Marquette Courìty
D¡rect Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
Marquette Courìty
Direct Program
D¡rect Program
D¡rect Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
D¡rect Program
D¡rect Program
D¡rect Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
D¡rect Program

377
381

(1O,O22)

468
N/A
516

(20,089)

561
681

TPA
TPA
154720
15s800
157720

88

8,241
s,3d
-

',,0uã

(8,301 )

Pâvñênf

131,127

247,022 _____________735,289

'1,256

3,2U
7,095
10,535

5,36;
139,843
13,606

'i'.1Æ

15,060

------------

237305

98'522
2,929

1,787
12

96,964
1,269
24,981
152,156
10,509
63,733
61,515
44,598

704
1,367
146,856
15,840

8,254
7,556

531

550

9,049

2,929
('t,787)
(12)
(1,269)
(1,605)
(148,963)

312

-

Subrecipient

34,641

(198,628) 420,873
395.101

Total
Expênditures

735,289 ______________:_

usP08000Y16

Total Department of Natural Resources

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Elderly and Hand¡capped Transportat¡on Aids

Accrued
(Dêfêrred)

Cash
Rêceived
(Refunded)

(124,409\ 362,382

Total Department of Agr¡culture, Trade and Consumer Protection
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION
Children with D¡sab¡lity Education Board

(Accrued)
Deferred
Revenue

s5,851
605,194
84,286
149,360
140,171
1,298
4,083
1,553

97,668

24,743
150,049
16,327
63,733
49,680
36,297
7,556
55,851

605,194
84,286
149,360
140,171
1,298

4,083
1,553

---------:-

Calumet County, Wisconsin
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS
31 2018
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
Pass-Through
Ent¡ty
State l.D.
Number

Grantor Aoencv/Stete Prooram Titlê
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES (Continued)
l&A EBS Ben Spec GPR
ADRC Money Follows the Person - Nursing Home Relocation
Aging Disability Resource Center
Benefit Spec¡alist Courìty
EBS OCI Replacement
State Senior Community Services
Title lll-Cl Congregate Meals
Title lll-C2 Home Delivered Meals
Elder Abuse Serv¡ce

435.560024
435.560065
435.560'100
435.560320
435.560327
435.560330
435.560350
435.560360
435.560490

ldentifying

Pass-Through
Aoêncv

Numhca

560024
560065
560100
560320
560327
560330
560350
5603ô0
s60490

GWAAR
Direct Program
Direct Program
GWAAR
GWAAR
GWAAR
GWAAR
GWAAR
GWAAR

(Accrued)
Defsrred
RevenuE
'll1l18

Cash
Rêce¡ved
(Refundedl

Accrued
(Deferred)

Revênue

121311'18

Total
Expenditures

2,671

1,220
85,889
1,652,186
29,435
3,349

4,894

4,894

1,220
(26,97ô)
(527,930)
(2,47',t)

97,454
1,660,168
26,995
3,149

15,411
519,948

2,440

Subrecipient
Pâvmânl

6,639

6,639
401

40'l

Total Department of Health Services
DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES
Medica¡d Agency I ncerìt¡ves
Med¡caid Agency I ncent¡ves
Kinsh¡p Care Progrâm - Benefits
Kinsh¡p Care Program - Assessments
Community I rìterverìtion Program
Youth A¡ds AOOA
Youth A¡ds
Basic County Allocation
State County match
Mobility Support Liabil¡ty Incerìtive
Ch¡ld Support Act¡vities
Ch¡ld Support Med¡cal Support
Ch¡ld Support - Federal Parerìt Locator Seruices

437.965
437.980
437.3377
437.3380
437.3410
437.34't1
437.3/.13
437.3s61
437.3ô81
437.7332
437.7502
437.760ô
437.7903

Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
D¡rect

Direct
D¡rect

Direct

965
980
3377
3380
3410
3/.11
3413

Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program
Program

(75e)
(1,140)

(772')

4,770
4,982

212
697

5,648

'12,369

69,137

789

4,739
4,770

840

3681

(1,029)

5,050
185,980

14,U7

'1,029
41,1 80

41,180
1,542

7606
7903

8,494

276,U7

276,847
185,980
14,847

356r
7332
7502

6,195
8,937
56,7ô8
3,950

1,542

Total Departmerf of Children and Families
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Victim Witness Cluster

455.

(1)

Not Ava¡lable

Direct Program

Total Department of Just¡ce
DEPARTMENT OF M¡LITARY AFFAIRS
O¡vision of Emergency Management, Petroleum
Computer and Hazmat Equipmerìt Grarìt
Federal A¡d Local Assistance

465.127
465.367

465.U2

Not Available
Not Available
Not Ava¡lable

Direct Program
Direct Program
Direct Program

Total Department of Military Affairs
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
Land Record Modern¡zat¡on
Strategic lnitiat¡ve Grant
Public Benefits - Low lncome Energy Ass¡stance Program
Public Benefrts - Low lncome Energy Assistance Program
Total Public Benefits - Low lncome Energy Ass¡stance Program

505.166
505.173

Direct Program
Direct Program

Not Available

505.371
505.371

D¡rect Program
D¡rect Program

AD1599973.8
WHEAP19.8

(8,706)
(8,194)
(19,290)
(3ô,190)

56,038
56,038
8,706

8,770
41,467
58,943

30,796
30,796
19,358
19,358

22,680
79,728

Not Available

(3,541)
(3,541)
-i3s41)

Total Oepartment of Admin¡stration

25,393
2't3 _
10,984
i0364=
2s306
',128,O14 10,984

58,034 ____________--58,034

576
41,535
42,111

22,680
79.728
21,852

11,197 __________:_

33p4e

135,457 __-________-_s

TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS
(1) V¡ct¡m Witness ¡s a cluster program tunded by the following State lD Numbers: 455.503, 455.532, 455.536, 4553537 and 455.539
The notes to the sÇhedule of expend¡tures

(28,800)
(28,800)

d

state awards arc an integral part of this schedule.
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CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

NOTE

l:

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards for Calumet County, Wisconsin are
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requiremenfs, Cosf Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the
Sfafe Srng/e Audit Guidelines issued by the Wisconsin Department of Administration.
The Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards include all federal and state awards of Calumet County
Because the schedules present only a selected portion of the operations of Calumet County, it is not intended to and
does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of Calumet County.

NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Revenues and expenditures in the schedules are presented in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting
and are generally in agreement with revenues and expenditures reported in Calumet County's 2018 fund financial
statements. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance and
Sfafe Srng/e Audif Guidelines, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Accrued revenue at year-end consists of federal and state program expenditures scheduled for
reimbursement to Calumet County in the succeeding year while unearned revenue represents advances for federal and
state programs that exceed recorded Calumet County expenditures. Because of subsequent program adjustments,
these amounts may differ from the prior year's ending balances.
Calumet County has not elected to charge a de minimis rate of 10o/o of modified total costs

NOTE 3: OVERSIGHT AGENCIES
The federal and state oversight agencies for Calumet County are as follows
Federal - U.S. Department of Justice
State - Wisconsin Department of Health Services

NOTE 4: TITLE 19 MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS
The Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards do not include recorded revenues of received by the
County for Title 19 Medical Assistance programs. The payments are considered a contract for services between the
State and the County and therefore are not reported as federal or state awards.

NOTE 5: PASS THROUGH ENTITIES
Federal awards have been passed through the following entities
GWAAR - Greater Wisconsin Agency on Aging Resources
- DCF - Wisconsin Department of Children and Families
DHS - Wisconsin Department of Health Services
DMA - Wisconsin Department of Military Afiairs
DOA - Wisconsin Department of Administration
Wl DOJ - Wisconsin Department of Justice
Wl DOT - Wisconsin Department of Transportation

Wl
Wl
Wl
Wl
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CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
Forthe Year Ended December 31,2018

NOTE 6: STATE DIRECT PAYMENTS
Payments made directly to recipients and vendors by the State of Wisconsin under the FoodShare Wisconsin program
on behalf of Calumet County are not included in the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards.

NOTE 7: STATE OF WISCONSIN COMMUNITY AIDS REPORTING SYSTEM
The Wisconsin Departments of Health Services (DHS) and Children and Families (DCF) utilize the Community Aids
Reporting System (CARS) and the System for Payments and Reports of Contracts (SPARC) for reimbursing Calumet
County for various federal and state program expenditures. The expenditures reported on the Schedules of
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards for various DHS & DCF programs agree with the expenditures reported on
the March 2019 CARS for the Human Services and Public Health Departments, and the December 2018 SPARC for
Child Support and Child Care programs.
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CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2018

SECTION

I- SUMMARY

OF AUDITORS'RESULTS

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Unmodified

Type of auditors' report issued:
lnternal control over financial reporting:

Þ

No

Materialweakness(es)identified?

None Reported

Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted?

No

FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

lnternal control over major program:
No

>

Yes

Significantdeficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with Uniform Guidance?

Yes

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with the
Sfafe Srng/e Audit Guidelines?

Yes

ldentification of major federal programs
CFDA Number
93.778

Name of Federal Program
Med¡cal Assistance

ldentification of major state programs:
Name of State Program

State lD Number
N/A
115.15
115.40

255.334
395.101

435.060

435.283
435.871
435.874
435.468
435.560065
435.560100

437.3413

County Staffand Support
Land and Water Resource Management
Children with Disability Education Board
Elderly and Handicapped Transportation Aids
Fraud Prerention lnrestigation, State Share
IMAA State Share
CLTS Other GPR
CLTS Autism Fed
Enhanced lM Funding
ADRC MFP-NH Relocation

Aging and Disability Resource Center
Youth Aids

Audit threshold used to determine between Type A and Type B programs:
FederalAwards

$750,000
$250,000

State Awards

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee

Yes
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CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Forthe Year Ended December 31,2018

SECTION

II.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

There are no findings related to the basic financial statements required to be reported under governmental auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America for the year ended December 31,2018.

SECTION III . FEDERAL AND STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FINDING NO.
UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND STATE S/NGLE AUDIT GUIDEL'AIES FINDINGS

2018-001

Financial Reporting for Federal and State Awards
Repeat of Finding 2017-001
Federal CFDA - All
State lDs - All

Compliance
Requirement:

Other

Criteria:

Having staff with expertise in federal and state financial reporting prepare the County's
single audit report is an internal control intended to prevent, detect and correct a potential
misstatement in the schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards, or
accompanying notes to the schedules.

Condition

Uniform Guidance and the Sfafe Srng/e Audit Guidelrnes require the County to prepare
appropriate financial statements, including the schedules of expenditures of federal and
state awards. While the current staff of the County maintains financial records supporting
amounts reported in the schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards, the County
contracts with CliftonlarsonAllen, LLP to compile the data from these records and assist in
the preparation of the single audit report for the County.

Questioned Costs

None identified.

Context:

Amounts reported to state government are funded by multiple funding sources which are
identified subsequent to disbursement. The audit firm has developed templates as a
convenience to our client to summarize these funding sources for reporting purposes.

Cause:

The additional costs associated with hiring staff sufficiently experienced to prepare the
County's single audit report, including the additional training time, outweigh the derived
benefits.

Effect:

The County could receive federal or state grant awards which are not included in the
accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards.

Recommendation:

We recommend County personnelcontinue reviewing the County's single audit report. While
it may not be cost beneficial to hire additional staff to prepare these items, a thorough review
of this information by appropriate staff of the County is necessary to ensure all federal and
state financial assistance programs are properly reported in the County's single audit report.

Views of

There is no disagreement with the audít finding.

Responsible
Officials:
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CALUMET COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
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SECTION IV. OTHER ISSUES

1.
2.

Does the auditor have substantial doubt as to the auditee's ability to continue
as a going concern?
Does the audit report show audit issues (i.e. material non-compliance, non-material
non-compliance, questioned cost, material weakness, significant deficiencies, management
letter comment, excess revenue or excess reserve) related to granUcontracts with funding
agencies that require audits to be in accordance with the Sfafe Single Audit Guidelines:
Department
Department
Department
Department
Department
Department
Department
Department
Department

3.

4.

No

of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection
of Public lnstruction
of Natural Resources
of Transportation
of Health Services
of Children and Families
of Justice
of Military Affairs
of Administration

Was a Management Letter or other document conveying audit comments issued as a result
of this audit?

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

,æF

Name and signature of partner

Paul G. Denis, CPA
5.

July 24,2019

Date of report
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CALUMET COUNTY MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

CalüÍffët
Count

206 Court Street
Chilton, Wl 53014
Office: (920) 849-1446
loll Free: {833} 620-2730
Fax: (920) 849-1475

Finance Department
CALUMET COUNTY, W|SCONSIN
Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings and Corrective Action Plan
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

The finding noted in the 2017 schedule of findings and questioned costs has been reported to the proper federal
and state agencies. The current status of the prior year audit finding, as provided by management, follows:
Findinq No.

Prior Year Audit Findinq

2017-OO1

Financial Reporting for Federal and State Awards
Management continues to rely upon the audit firm to prepare schedule of expenditures of federal
and state awards. The finding is repeated as 2018-001
.

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
Findinq No.
2018-001

Corrective Action Plan

Financial Reporting for Federal and State Awards
Reporting objectives relate to the preparation of reports for use by the County, its stakeholders, or
other external parties. Reporting includes External Financial Reporting Objectives related to the
release of the County's financial performance in accordance with professional standards,
applicable laws and regulations, as well as expectations of stakeholders.
Historically, the independent audit firm has assisted the County with financial statement
preparation, footnote disclosures, required supplemental information (RSl) disclosures, the
schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (SEFSA) and the adjustments necessitated
by multiple basis of accounting requirements (including GASB #34). As a matter of convenience,
use of the independent audit firm results in several benefits to the County:

1.

External auditors, by definition, work with multiple counties. Footnotes, RSl, SEFSA and
basis adjustments become uniform among entities more rapidly when the external auditor
serves as the information centric location. This uniformity is useful to the County and its
stakeholders for comparison purposes.

2.

External auditors, by necessity to perform their single audit compliance testing, obtain
information needed to develop the SEFSA from multiple County reporting systems with
federal and state funding sources. This provides the efficiency of a central data collection
point.

3. The County and its representative:

Dan DeBonis, CPA, Finance Director, possess the skill,
knowledge and experience to accept, review and approve all non-audit services performed
for the County by the independent auditor. We formally acknowledge that responsibility
annually in the engagement letter and the management representation letter. Our review
prior to acceptance includes but is not limited to:
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1.
2.

Reconciliation of general ledger amounts to the preliminary draft report.
Reconciliation of the draft report to those reports previously submitted to multiple County
reporting systems of federal and state funding sources. This includes state agencies such as
the Department of Health Service, Department of Transportation and Department of
Revenue.

3.

Review of disclosures for adequacy by completing a disclosure checklist or reviewing
applicable guidance and with prior reports modified for current changes in reporting
requirements (such as the implementation of GASB #75).

4.

Review and approval of all proposed accounting adjustments and those adjustments
necessitated for reporting only along with supporting documentation.

5.

Maintenance of our skill, knowledge and experience by utilization of continuing education
programs, government-specific training provided by funding sources and related professional
organizations.

We believe our current approach to the audit finding remains appropriate and cost effective
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